Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

Any individual with a disability may request special assistance by contacting the chief clerk to
the board of supervisors (acting on behalf of the Madera County GSAs).

Madera County
Groundwater Sustainability Agency
(in the Madera, Chowchilla, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins)
Committee Meeting
August 5, 2025
1:30 p.m.

Meeting Location
Madera County Government Center
200 W. 4th Street, Madera CA 93637
Board of Supervisors Chambers

REMOTE PARTICIPATION
https://zoom.us/j/89876438188

Supporting documents relating to the items on this agenda are available through the County of
Madera websites at www.maderacounty.com and maderacountywater.com. These documents
are also available at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (acting on behalf of the
Madera County GSAs), 200 West 4th Street, 4th Floor, Madera, CA 93637. Supporting
documents relating to the items on this agenda that are not listed as ‘Closed Session’ may be
submitted after the posting of the agenda and are available at the Office of the Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors (acting on behalf of the Madera County GSAs). Please visit the Office of the
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (acting on behalf of the Madera County GSAs) for updates.

1. Flag Salute
2. Public Comment - This is an opportunity for comment on items not on this agenda. This

is also a place to suggest topics for future meetings. Comments can be five minutes or
less.


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fzoom.us%2Fj%2F89876438188&data=05%7C02%7CEmily.Garcia%40maderacounty.com%7Caa7a41ea1bbb42ebb48008ddc937fdac%7C6e47272b0f044e0299ca053508f0d2b5%7C0%7C0%7C638887964503154984%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Sb%2B8M2Cjnr1Cqi7E0AmUngXGjO5JkOKJvxQ5Cuxpkeo%3D&reserved=0
http://www.maderacounty.com/

Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

. Action Item: Approval of the Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Committee Meeting Minutes from July 1, 2025.

Informational Item: Measurement Methods (and Accounting Platform) RFP Update

. Action Item: Consideration and recommendation to the Board of Directors to enter into a

Memorandum of Understanding between Valley Water Collaborative (VWC) and the 23
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin, regarding
water quality testing for domestic wells and replacement water supplies.

. Action Item: Consideration and recommendation to the Board of Directors to enter into

an Amendment to MCC No.11686F-24 with Davids Engineering, Inc. for an amount not to
exceed $975,270.50 and amending the scope for professional engineering services
associated with grant-funded recharge projects with a term date of June 30, 2027. All
costs are reimbursed by a grant.

Directors’ Reports

. Adjourn



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 3

Madera County
Groundwater Sustainability Agency
(in the Madera, Chowchilla, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins)
Committee Meeting
July 1, 2025 @ 1:30 p.m.

Meeting Location: Madera County Government Center
200 W. 4th Street, Madera CA 93637
Board of Supervisors Chambers

REMOTE PARTICIPATION
https://zoom.us/j/83035126482

Attendance:
County GSA Directors: Leticia Gonzalez, Robert Macaulay

County GSA Staff: Stephanie Anagnoson, Jeannie Habben, Allison Medley, Tukta Phetasa,
Aleta Allen, Emily Garcia

County staff attending on behalf of the GSA: Tatiana Echevarria, Regina Garza
20 members of public in person; 26 members of the public on Zoom
1. Flag Salute — This was led by Director Gonzalez.
2. Public Comment — This is an opportunity for comment on items not on this agenda. This is
also a place to suggest topics for future meetings. Comments can be five minutes or less —

There were no public comments.

3. Action Item: Approval of the Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency Committee
Meeting Minutes from June 3, 2025 — There were no public comments

Result: Motion passed

Moved: Director Macaulay

Second: Director Gonzalez

Ayes: Director Gonzalez; Director Macaulay



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fzoom.us%2Fj%2F83035126482&data=05%7C02%7CEmily.Garcia%40maderacounty.com%7Cd97e1607aaad49dcdbd908ddb3307740%7C6e47272b0f044e0299ca053508f0d2b5%7C0%7C0%7C638863742936605653%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zS533gxPSPo8twONrVGf%2BkhMp85ODahnF1FOfX6%2BL7Q%3D&reserved=0

4.

Recess

Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 3

Informational Item: Measurement Method and/or Groundwater Platform Presentations:

a.

Hydrosat (Measurement data)
Presentation by Brett Blom

Land IQ (Measurement data)
Presentation by Joel Kimmelshue

California Water Data Consortium (Measurement data + platform)
Presentation by John Burns

4 Creeks with Basinsafe (platform)
Presentation by Victor Lopez

Davids Engineering and H2oTech with RemoteTracker (platform)
Presentation by John Davids/Jeff Davids

MLJ with Watermark (platform)
Presentation by Robert Cima

United Water Tracking Systems with the Water Dashboard Accounting Platform
(platform)
Presentation by Scott Steinbeck

5. Action Iltem: Consideration and Recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve a
resolution amending Resolution 2022-086 and repealing and replacing resolution 2022-198
establishing revised fees for Domestic Well Mitigation Program for the Madera Subbasin —
This was presented by Ms. Anagnoson with support from Kevin Kostiuk of Raftelis. There
were 5 public comments.

Result: Motion passed

Moved: Director Macaulay

Second: Director Gonzalez

Ayes: Director Gonzalez; Director Macaulay




Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 3

6. Action Item: Consideration and Recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve a
resolution repealing Resolution No. 2025-004 and reinstating Resolution No. 2022-072 which
outlines procedures for the review of new or altered groundwater wells and verification of
consistency with adopted groundwater sustainability plans — This was presented by Ms.
Habben. There were no public comments.

Result: Motion passed

Moved: Director Macaulay

Second: Director Gonzalez

Ayes: Director Gonzalez; Director Macaulay

7. Directors’ Reports — Ms. Anagnoson provided some updates on recent activities.

8. Adjourn: 3:45 pm



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 4

Date: August 1, 2025

To: Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Committee
Leticia Gonzalez, Robert Macaulay

From: Stephanie Anagnoson, Director of Water and Natural Resources

Subject: Informational Iltem: Measurement Methods (and Accounting Platform) RFP Update

DISCUSSION:

Background

Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Madera County GSA) tracks
water use for irrigated acres within its boundaries using satellite measurements or
meters. The choice of measurement is a grower decision. Two separate existing
contracts for satellite measurement expire in 2025 at the end of the calendar year.
The Madera County GSA has discussed evaluating options for satellite measurement
repeatedly at the GSA Committee level as well as Board of Directors level.

On May 15, 2025, staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) for measurement
method(s) as well as an accounting platform to operate in conjunction with
measurement methods. Questions on the RFP were due on May 30, 2025. Over 30
guestions were received and responded to by June 3, 2025, primarily related to
measurement methods.

Seven proposals were received and are summarized below (in no particular order).

a. Hydrosat (Measurement data) — This is a satellite measurement method,
which provides an online portal and daily ET measurement and ETAW
calculation. The effective precipitation is calculated using the IDC model.
Annual costs for 2026 are $182,600 with discounts for longer subscriptions.
Hydrosat is used internationally in more than 50 countries.



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 4

b. Land IQ (Measurement data) — This is a satellite measurement method with an
optional online portal. The service provides ET and precipitation
measurements. It includes on-ground weather stations. Annual costs for 2026
are $131,393 plus an online portal fee of $66,368 (optional) with discounts for
longer subscriptions. Land IQ is used in 40 GSAs.

c. California Water Data Consortium with Groundwater Accounting Platform
(Measurement data + platform) — This is a grower-facing platform for
accessing data that can integrate Open ET or other measurement data
sources. This would be a total cost in the first year of $123,000 with reduced
rates at years two and three. This platform was originally developed for
Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District.

d. 4 Creeks with Basinsafe (platform) — This is grower-facing platform for
accessing data that can integrate different measurement sources. The
platform currently serves six GSAs and seven water districts. Costs for year
one is $156,500 with a reduced rate at years two and three.

e. Davids Engineering and H2OTech (platform) — This is a grower-facing platform
for accessing data that can integrate different measurement sources. This
platform was originally developed for surface water accounting with Richvale
Irrigation District and Reclamation District No. 108. Costs for one year are
$100,000 with discounted rates at years two and three.

f. United Water Tracking Systems with the Water Dashboard Accounting
Platform (platform) — This is a grower-facing platform for accessing data that
can integrate different measurement sources. Private meter data can be
accepted through a structured appeals process. Costs for one year are
$122,415.

g. MLJ with Watermark (platform) — This is a grower-facing platform for
accessing data that can integrate different measurement sources. This is used
by North Fork Kings GSA, South Fork Kings GSA and El Rico GSA. Costs for
one year are $121,709 with a discounted rate at years two and three.

Presentations were conducted at the GSA Committee on July 1, 2025, with questions
collected afterward in writing and via email. Questions were emailed to the respondents, and
their responses posted on-line on maderacountywater.com/measurement. On July 11, 2025,
a questionnaire was mailed to growers on their preferences with links to the presentations
and proposals and with responses due by the end of the month.

All seven vendors had reference checks done, three per each vendor. References for



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 4

satellite measurement methods were consistently positive. References for the groundwater
accounting platforms expressed that there were sometimes gaps between the services
initially offered and the evolving needs of the growers.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is a significant fiscal impact with awarding a contract or contracts for measurement
methods and a groundwater accounting platform. The estimate of costs is somewhere
between $125,000 - $500,000 depending on the number of measurement methods and
accounting platform.

ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

AA




Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 5

Date: August 1, 2025

To: Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Committee
Leticia Gonzalez, Robert Macaulay

From: Stephanie Anagnoson, Director of Water and Natural Resources

Subject: Action Item: Consideration and recommendation to the Board of Directors to enter
into a Memorandum of Understanding between Valley Water Collaborative (VWC) and the
23 Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSASs) in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin, regarding
water quality testing for domestic wells and replacement water supplies.

DISCUSSION:

Background: The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) was signed into law
on September 16, 2014. SGMA requires local agencies to form Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies (GSAs), with the intent to create local control of groundwater management for the
Subbasins. Furthermore, through the implementation of Groundwater Sustainability Plans
(GSPs), the GSAs are required to meet sustainability goals for groundwater.

On May 13, 2017, Madera County became the GSA for the portion of the Delta-Mendota
Subbasin, within the County of Madera, not already covered by another agency. The County
of Madera GSA-Delta-Mendota is one of 23 GSAs in the basin. Currently, the 23 GSAs
make up seven GSA Groups. Out of the seven GSA Groups in the Delta-Mendota, the
County of Madera GSA-Delta-Mendota is part of the San Joaquin River Exchange
Contractors GSA Group (SJREC), which includes eleven other GSAs.

In 2024, the 23 GSAs in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin collaborated and created a single
GSP (2024 GSP). The 2024 GSP has been submitted to the State Water Resource Control
Board (SWRCB) and the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for review. The Delta-
Mendota Subbasin GSP is currently under review by SWRCB.

Proposed Memorandum of Understanding: The 2024 GSP included a Domestic Well
Mitigation Policy, which the 23 GSAs are actively working to implement. As part of
implementation and to strengthen Delta-Mendota Subbasin’s commitment to addressing



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 5

groundwater quality, the 23 GSAs in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin are entering into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), with Valley Water Collaborative (VWC). In
accordance with the Delta-Mendota 2024 GSP Domestic Well Mitigation Policy, the MOU
describes terms to coordinate efforts related to domestic well quality testing and assist with
providing replacement water, as determined necessary.

VWC is a non-profit that is known for providing nitrate and other contaminant testing for
domestic wells. Through VWC Early Action Plans, efforts have been made in the Delta-
Mendota, Eastern San Joaquin, Merced, Madera and Yolo groundwater subbasins, to offer
well testing for contaminants and provide replacement water to those whose wells have
exceeded the state’s primary maximum contaminant levels for the constituents tested. VWC
will be coordinating similar efforts with the Delta-Mendota Subbasin with the following
summary of terms listed in the MOU:

¢ VWC and Delta-Mendota 23 GSAs will work collaboratively to avoid duplication of
efforts and to share data concerning groundwater monitoring wells, groundwater
data, testing domestic wells, mitigation of dry wells, and replacement drinking water.

e VWC and Delta-Mendota 23 GSAs mutually express interest in ensuring that all
residents in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin have access to safe and affordable drinking
water.

e Consistent with VWC Early Action Plans, VWC will conduct outreach, free domestic
well testing for contaminants (including nitrates), and provide replacement water in
the Delta-Mendota Subbasin.

e Delta-Mendota Subbasin 23 GSAs will identify a single point of contact to work with
VWC concerning the Delta-Mendota GSP Domestic Well Mitigation Policy.

e VWC agrees to notify Delta-Mendota point of contact concerning dry wells and inform
residents of the Delta-Mendota Subbasin GSP Domestic Well Mitigation Policy.

e In accordance with the Domestic Well Mitigation Policy, if installation of a
replacement well is the chosen mitigation measure, Delta-Mendota Subbasin 23
GSAs agree to take all reasonable efforts to install replacement wells that are



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 5

perforated at a level where groundwater meets primary drinking water standards.

e Delta-Mendota Subbasin 23 GSAs agree that if replacement wells through the Delta-
Mendota GSP Domestic Well Mitigation Policy, do not meet drinking water standards,
the Subbasin will work with VWC to provide replacement water.

e Delta-Mendota Subbasin 23 GSAs agree to develop future agreements or
amendments to this agreement with VWC, that may give the 23 GSAs ability to
provide funding annually to the VWC for domestic well testing and replacement water
in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin in association with the 2024 GSP implementation.

e VWC and the Delta-Mendota 23 GSAs will collaborate on the development of a
Preliminary Management Zone Implementation Plan, and future plans as appropriate
and applicable.

No fiscal impact. Currently the County of Madera GSA-Delta-Mendota, has no domestic
wells located within the boundaries and has no funding source for domestic well mitigation.

Link to the final Delta-Mendota Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan
https://deltamendota.org/final-gsp-documents/

Link to the Delta-Mendota Subbasin Domestic Well Mitigation Policy- Appendix N
https://deltamendota.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/0729GSPDocs/Appendices.pdf

VWC website
https://valleywaterc.org/

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact. Currently the County of Madera GSA-Delta-Mendota, has no domestic
wells located within the boundaries and has no funding source for domestic well mitigation.


https://deltamendota.org/final-gsp-documents/
https://deltamendota.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/0729GSPDocs/Appendices.pdf
https://valleywaterc.org/

Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 5

ATTACHMENTS:

1. MOU Between Valley Water Collaborative and Delta Mendota GSAs

JC































Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 6

Date: August 1, 2025

To: Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Committee
Leticia Gonzalez, Robert Macaulay

From: Stephanie Anagnoson, Director of Water and Natural Resources

Subject: Action Item: Consideration of entering into an Amendment to MCC No.11686F-24
with Davids Engineering, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $975,270.50 and amending the
scope for professional engineering services associated with grant-funded recharge projects
with a term date of June 30, 2027. All costs are reimbursed by a grant.

DISCUSSION:

The Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSASs) are currently
implementing Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the Chowchilla, Madera, and
Delta-Mendota Subbasins to achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040. The GSPs include
a mix of projects and management actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater
management. A key component of these GSPs is the development of projects that enable
groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, flood-managed aquifer recharge (Flood-
MAR), and spreading basins. To aid in groundwater recharge project development, the
County GSA is currently engaged in development of a strategic recharge plan and
implementation program.

Davids Engineering, Inc. (DE) has been providing Madera County GSA with professional
engineering services associated with these grant-funded recharge projects since inception
(project formulation, grant application, preparation, and design activities to date). There are
four proposals for professional engineering services with scopes that staff recommend
amending.

- Exhibit A: Proposal for 100% Design and Environmental Permitting for Madera
Subbasin Recharge Project 1

The project as identified in the strategic recharge plan included the planning, design, and
environmental permitting associated with the following:



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 6

e Construction of three turnouts on Bureau of Reclamation facility, Lateral 6.2
e Rehabilitation of one existing turnout on Bureau of Reclamation facility, Lateral 32.2
e Construction of one 40-acre dedicated groundwater recharge basin

e Construction of infrastructure associated with conveyance of flood flows to
approximately 2,500 acres of existing farmland for recharge through Flood-MAR

Collectively, all project components will be designed to have the capacity of recharging
approximately 12,600 acre-feet (AF) per year when flood flows are available. Completion of
the Project is being funded by a grant from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and
a local cost share. The work set-forth in this proposal covers professional engineering and
environmental permitting services associated with advancing the project from its current
level of design to 100% design. It includes costs to update the Cost Share Analysis, Basis of
Design Report, Design Drawings, Engineer’s Estimate, Technical Specifications and
integrating environmental compliance measures into the design package. The cost is not to
exceed $85,325.50 and is reimbursed to the County GSA with Prop 68 grant funds.

- Exhibit B: Proposal for Bidding and Construction Management — Chowchilla
Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Project 1

The project as identified in the strategic recharge plan includes the planning, design,
environmental permitting, construction, construction management, monitoring, assessment,
stakeholder outreach, and education associated with the following:
e Construction of three new turnouts (two capable of diverting 20 cfs and one capable
of diverting 40 cfs) with appropriate conveyance to divert flood flows to approximately
1,700 acres of existing farmland for Flood-MAR
e Two landowner constructed dedicated groundwater recharge basins with
approximately 64 acres in total area
The project will be designed to have a capacity to recharge 8,000 AF per year, when water
is available. This proposal provides the scope and fee associated with providing bidding
support, managing pre-construction activities, construction management and inspections,
and post-construction reporting for Chowchilla Project 1. The cost is not to exceed $383,528
and is reimbursed to the County GSA with Prop 68 grant funds.



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 6

- Exhibit C: Proposal for 100% Design and Environmental Compliance Permitting
for Chowchilla Subbasin Recharge Project 2

The project will construct a point of diversion on the Chowchilla Bypass to divert flood flows
in years when water is available and apply the water onto participating lands for Flood-MAR
and into a landowner constructed dedicated recharge basin for direct recharge. This point of
diversion will have a maximum capacity of 20 cfs or approximately 40 AF per day. The
project will be designed to have a capacity to recharge approximately 2,000-to-6,000 AF per
year at full build out, when water is available. The work set-forth in this proposal covers
professional engineering and environmental permitting services associated with advancing
the project from its current level of design to 100% design. The proposal includes costs to
update the Cost Share Analysis, Basis of Design Report, Design Drawings, Engineer’s
Estimate, Technical Specifications and integrate environmental compliance measures into
the design package. The cost is not to exceed $180,000 and is reimbursed to the County
GSA with Prop 68 grant funds.

- Exhibit D: Proposal for 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla Recharge Project
2 — Talley Diversion System

The project will be designed to have the capacity of recharging approximately 2,000 AF per
year at full build out, when water is available. The following summary provides the
anticipated design components:

e One point of diversion on the Chowchilla Bypass capable of diverting up to 20 cubic
feet per second equipped with a fish screen and a 24-inch magnetic flow meter
e 2,500 lineal feet of PVC pipe to deliver water to a 5-acre private landowner
constructed recharge basin for direct recharge and Flood-MAR
This proposal is intended to provide costs to start the Talley Diversion Project and bring it up
to 60% Design. It includes costs for fieldwork, permitting/CEQA, 30/60% Design, and Basis
of Design Report. The cost is not to exceed $326,417 and is reimbursed to the County GSA
with Prop 68 grant funds.

The term date for this amendment is June 30,2027, and the cost is broken down as follows:
e 100% Design and Environmental Permitting for Madera Subbasin Recharge Project
1: $85,325.50
¢ Bidding and Construction Management — Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for
Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Project 1: $383,528



Committee Members
Leticia Gonzalez
Robert Macaulay

ITEM 6

e 100% Design and Environmental Compliance Permitting for Chowchilla Subbasin

Recharge Project 2: $180,000

e 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla Recharge Project 2 — Talley Diversion System:

$326,417

The total cost of all four proposals for this amendment is not to exceed $975,270.50

and is reimbursed to the County GSA with Prop 68 grant funds.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This is reimbursed by Prop 68 funding. There is no impact on the general fund.

ATTACHMENTS:

N~ WNE

MCC NO.
MCC NO.
MCC NO.
MCC NO.
MCC NO.
MCC NO.
MCC No. 11686F-24
DE 7th Recharge Contract Amendment 07.31.2025

11686-20

11686A-21
11686B-22
11686C-22
11686D-23
11686E-23

TP







Agreement, shall not be increased without the written modification of this Agreement by the
COUNTY and CONSULTANT. Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30)
days after CONSULTANT's regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this Agreement
are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance acceptable to COUNTY, of the
deliverables required under the Proposal. Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for

compensating any of its sub-consultants under this Agreement.

4. NOTICES. All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be

effective upon personal service or deposit in the mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

COUNTY CONSULTANT

County of Madera Bryan Thoreson

Water and Natural Resources Dept. Davids Engineering, Inc.

200 West 4th Street 1772 Picasso Avenue, Suite A
Madera, CA 93837 Davis, CA 95618

With Copy to

Rhonda Cargill, Clerk of the Board
Madera County Board of Supervisors

200 West 4t" Street

Madera, CA 93637

5. INSURANCE. CONSULTANT shall maintain the following insurance: General
liability, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) aggregate, with additional-insured endorsement; Automobile liability, One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00); Worker's Compensation as required by California law; Professional

liability, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) aggregate.

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND REPORTING. CONSULTANT shall at all times
avoid any conflict of interest, or appearance of a conflict of interest, in performance of this
Agreement. CONSULTANT represents that CONSULTANT and its officers and employees have
no present financial or other conflict of interest that would disqualify any or all of them from
entering into or performing services under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall also refrain from

engaging in business which opposes projects in which the COUNTY is processing while this
contract is in place.

7. CHANGE OF PERSONNEL. COUNTY shall have the right to renegotiate this

Agreement if project management staff as identified in the scope of work is changed.

Page 2



8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. All services performed pursuant to this
Agreement by CONSULTANT shall be performed as an independent contractor. Under no
circumstances shall CONSULTANT, its officers, employees, or agents, look to COUNTY as its
employer, or as a partner, agent, or principal. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any benefits
accorded to COUNTY's employees. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for providing, at its own

expense, and in its name, disability, worker's compensation, or other insurance as well as licenses
or permits usual or necessary for conducting the services hereunder. CONSULTANT shall pay,

when and as due, any and all taxes incurred as a result of CONSULTANT's compensation

hereunder.

9. PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES. CONSULTANT represents that it has the
qualifications and ability to perform the services required under this Agreement. CONSULTANT
will perform such services with reasonable care and diligence, and in a professional manner
according to accepted standards. CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the performance
of the services hereunder, and shall receive no assistance, direction, or control from COUNTY.
CONSULTANT shall have sole discretion and contral of its services and the manner in which
performed. COUNTY retains the right to administer this Agreement so as to verify that

CONSULTANT is performing its obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Agreement.

10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. CONSULTANT shall use reasonable

care and diligence to comply with the applicable federal, state, and local laws in performance of
work under this Agreement.

11. NON-DISCRIMINATION. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT

will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on any basis prohibited by

state or federal law including race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.

12.  OWNERSHIP AND RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS. All reports and other
documents prepared by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement shall become the property of

COUNTY. COUNTY is entitled to full and unrestricted use of such reports and other documents for
this Project. COUNTY may also retain the original of the reports and other documents upon

request. CONSULTANT shall not apply for copyrights or patents on all or any part of the work
performed under this Agreement.

13. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. COUNTY may terminate this Agreement

without cause by giving at least thirty (30) days written notice to the other party, which notice shall

Page 3



include the date of termination. If this Agreement is terminated prior to completion, CONSULTANT

shall be paid for all work satisfactorily performed through the date of termination.

14. REMEDIES UPON BREACH. If CONSULTANT materially breaches the terms of
this Agreement, COUNTY shall have all of the following remedies:

14.01: Immediately terminate the Agreement with CONSULTANT,;
14.02: Retain the reports and other documents prepared by CONSULTANT,;
14.03: Complete the unfinished work under this Agreement with a different consultant;

14.04. Charge CONSULTANT with the difference between the cost of completion of the
unfinished work remaining under this Agreement by a different consultant and the amount that
would otherwise be due CONSULTANT had CONSULTANT completed the work.15.

SUCCESSION AND ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is binding on CONSULTANT and its

successors. Except as otherwise provided herein, CONSULTANT shall not assign, sublet or

transfer its interest in this Agreement, or any part thereof or delegate its duties hereunder without
the prior written consent of the COUNTY.

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto and

incorporated by reference, shall constitute the entire agreement between CONSULTANT and

COUNTY with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes in its entirety all previous
negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings, advertisements, publications, and understandings
of any nature whatsoever unless expressly included in this Agreement. No other agreement, oral or
otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind either

of the parties herein.

17. GOVERNING LAW. The laws of the State of California shall govern the rights,

obligations, duties and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement and shall also govern the

interpretation of this Agreement. Venue for any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be the
Superior Court for the County of Madera, California.

18. INDEMNITY. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONSULTANT shall defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless COUNTY, its officers, employees, and agents from any loss, cost,
expense (including attorney's fees), damage, claim, or liability resulting from, arising out of, oris in
any way connected with the performance of this Agreement by CONSULTANT, it's officers,
employees, or agents, except to the extent that such damage, claim, or liability is proven to be

caused exclusively by COUNTY’s sole negligence or willful misconduct in its performance of this

Page 4



agreement. COUNTY will not be liable for any accident, loss, or damage to the work prior to its

completion and acceptance.

19. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this

Agreement and all provisions of this Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between the

parties shall survive the completion of the services hereunder and/or the termination of this

Agreement.

20. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event that one or more provisions of this Agreement may be

deemed unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

21. SECTION HEADINGS. The section headings, enumeration, and sequence of

sections appearing herein are for convenience purposes only and shall not be deemed to govern,

limit, modify, or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the provisions of this

Agreement.

22. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence to this Agreement.

23.  FORCE MAJEURE. Neither the COUNTY nor CONSULTANT shall be liable to the

other for damages or delay in performing under this Agreement, or for the direct or indirect costs

resulting from such delay, arising out of labor strikes, riot, public disturbances, war, fire, accidents,
extraordinary weather conditions, natural catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the control of

either party.
/)
1
i
1
/)
1
//
1
)

/)

Page 5









Response to Request for
Qualifications and Proposals

Recharge Study
Consulting Services
RFP 2020-06

May 15, 2020

Prepared by
DAVIDS

ENGINEERING, INC

# % Luhdorff & Scalmanini
2N .
A N Consulting Engineers

In association with

Kennedy Jenks

ERA Economics

Environment « Resources « Agriculfure

Contact: Bryan Thoreson
Davids Engineering

1772 Picasso Avenue, Suite A
Davis, California 95618
530.757.6107 Ext.105
bryan@davidsengineering.com




Madera County

Response to Request for
Qualifications and Proposals

Recharge Study Consulting Services
RFP 2020-06

May 15, 2020

Prepared For

Madera County Department of Water and Natural Resources

Prepared By

Davids Engineering and Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers
In association with
Environmental Science Associates
Kennedy-Jenks
ERA Economics and
Sacramento State Consensus and Collaboration Program



Cover Letter

May 15, 2020

Ms. Stephanie Anagnoson

Department of Water and Natural Resources
Madera County

200 W. 4% Street

Madera, California 93637

Subject: Response to Madera County-RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services

Dear Ms. Anagnoson:

Davids Engineering, Inc. (DE) and Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers (ILSCE) are pleased
to submit this proposal in response to your request to assist Madera County in Recharge Study
Consulting Services. DE will be the primary consultant for contracting. Our team consists of
handpicked individuals with applied experience to support the Madera County Groundwater
Sustainability Agency (GSA) to implement artificial groundwater recharge efforts by providing
technical expertise in the following areas: applying for temporary and permanent water rights, cost-
benefit analyses focused on determining the optimum mix of permanent and temporary recharge
Flood-Managed Aquifer Recharge (Flood-MAR) basins, identification and prioritizing of lands for
recharge, design of infrastructure to deliver water to temporary and permanent basins, design and
construction of temporary and permanent basins, and coordination and outreach. We will support the
Madetra County GSA from start to finish in development and implementation of a phased recharge
plan, including design, permitting, and construction of recharge infrastructure.

The core of the DE-LSCE Team consists of four of the firms that worked on the Chowchilla and
Madera Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) plus Environmental Science Associates
(ESA) and Kennedy-Jenks (IX]), to support specific tasks. ESA will provide environmental assessment
and suppott, if desited, water rights acquisitions. KJ will provide recharge basin designs and provide
supportt with infrastructure design and construction management. Key members of the team have
worked together for many yeats and are also cutrentdy working together on other projects. For
example, DE, LSCE, KJ and ERA ate working together on preparation of the Solano Subbasin GSP.
Additionally, DE, ERA and ESA are working together on the El Dorado (County) Water Reliability
Project. LSCE is also cuttrently working with ESA and KJ on various other projects. These teaming
relationships have provided a strong foundation of understanding and communication amongst the
team members, thereby ensuring seamless work flow for this recharge project.

This proposal includes a work plan and budget to develop and implement a recharge program for the
Madera County GSA. We will continue and build on our past work with GSA stakeholders, including
the local natural resoutce, conscrvation, and agticultural organizations and other interested
stakcholders. We anticipate working closely with the Madera County GSA to develop a detailed,
phased recharge program work plan and, if necessary, to scale the work plan and the budget as needed
to align with available funding,

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services |



The DE-LSCE Team’s experience and understanding of sustainable groundwater management in
Madera County uniquely position us to successfully complete this project. Our experience emphasizes
the following:

1. GSP dcvelopment expetience, data collection and analysis, and history Workmg with
stakeholders in the County, enabling us to complete the project planning phase in time for
DWR’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant Program GSP implementation grant
applications scheduled for release in 2021.

2. Expetience with drilling/installing nested monitoring wells in Chowchilla and Madera
Subbasins, wotking closely with the County, other GSAs, and basin stakeholders (e.g.
Leadership Council) to site wells at optimum locations for collection of lithologic, geophysical,
water level, and water quality data.

3. Expetience with and knowledge of existing project and management actions plans as described
in the Chowchilla and Madera GSPs and annual reports.

4. Expetience supporting the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Flood-MAR
Program with environmental and engineering and economic analyses.

5. Ability to handle all environmental needs during planning, design, permitting and construction
of the project—including fisheries/fish screening and flood management expertise specific to
the Chowchilla and Eastside bypasses.

6. Strategic thinking for identifying ecological benefits and avolding impacts—during planning
and design, not as mitigation.

7. Effective engagement of tegulatory agencies and trusted relationships with United States Army
Cotps of Engineers (USACE), United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), National
Marine Fishery Setvice (NMES), and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).

The DE-LSCE Team have worked together on a vatiety of projects involving surface water and
groundwatet resource management, including related work in Madera County, and have offices
located near each other enabling close intetnal coordination throughout the duration of the project.
The DE-LSCE Team is highly experienced and uniquely qualified to plan and implement the recharge
progtam for the Madera County GSA. Our Team combines strong experience in planning and
implementing the various aspects of a recharge program with our close familiarity of the groundwater
and surface water conditions in the Chowchilla and Madera Subbasins gained through preparation of
the Chowchilla GSP and the Joint GSP covering much of the Madera Subbasin. We look forward to
the opportunity to continue working on behalf of the Madera County GSA.

We hereby certify that the information presented in this proposal is true and correct to the best of our
knowledge. Please do not hesitate to contact either of us if you have any questions concerning this

proposal.

Davids Engineering Luhdorff & ScalrnaninﬂiﬂConsulting Engineers
Bryan Thoreson, Principal Engineer Peter Leffler, Principal Hydrogeologist

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 2



Table of Contents

COVEL LttOL ciiriiieirrninsiiiniiitiiniirrerritiscertst st e retstrerrasr s e raesttnrarrreeenernsrnsmssssasaessermessnmsnassnesassannss 1
Table Of COMEENES .. ..ttt rite ettt eiaseat et retmnaesnesnsasrsensens 3
1. Organization CRaft... oo e ettt as s e s as e s e e s e s s e a e e 4
TEAM ORGANTIZATTON -ttt ettt et s ca s 444001 re b e s s en st e annay 4
2.QUAlifiCAtIONS tiiiiiiiiiiiiniieniniinieineiierririnir ittt iases s s esarssssstnrerrtrn s s rns i inasesnnnanans 5
DE-LSCE TEAM PARTINERS......cooie ittt sessetstesesessaeseessetsssessecsasseseseesesessensensncsons 5
KEY DE-LSCE TEAM PERSONNEL .....oiiiiiiitricieneerieesiee s ssisisecase s cienseesissse s sannscasseans 6
Bryan Thoreson, PhD, PE, Principal Engineer (DE) ..o 6
Pete Leffler, PG, CHG, Principal Hydrogeologist (ILSCE)....ooioiiiieiin 7
Gerrit Platenkamp, PhD, Environmental Science Associates (ESA) v, 8
David Ferguson, PhD, PE, BCEL, Vice President, Kennedy Jenks (IJ) coiiiiinininnns 8
Duncan MacEwan, PhD, Principal Economist (ERA)....c.ocoeiiii 8
Malka Kopell, MPP, Senior Facilitator/Mediator (CCP) ..o 9
3.Project Understanding and APProach ... ceeniecsanean e 10
PROJECT UNDIZRSTANIDING ....ooieiiecececeecs s bbb 10
PROPOSED WORIK PLAN ..ottt s sis st se s ses s s nsasaen o 1
PRELIMINARY SCHEDTLL oottt ettt ss et ses e eaeacnenee 14

Y 0T O P 15
5.Project Experience Success and Refetences...imnmiininnccicinecciicninsecceccnnennnens 17
PROJECT DESCRIPTTIONS ..ottt memss e s s 17
DE, ERA, CCP and LSCE PLOJECt i seietisaeseetsses s sssss s 17
ERA 200 DE PLOJECE ..ttt sst sttt sna s bbb 18
LSCE PLOJECES cuvuruieiniieiictsiietinte ettt e a s e st s bbb 18
EISA PIOJECES couvuiie e ies ettt s s 0 20

I PIOJECLS vttt e 21
CPP PrLOJECE 1ttt 11 21

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 3



1. Organization Chart

Davids Engineering (DE) and Luhdorff and Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers (LSCE) have
complementary technical skills and qualifications covering a wide range of water resources services. Both
firms are thoroughly familiar with the of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)
provisions, the Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for Madeta and Chowchilla Subbasins, and are
also extensively involved in sustainable groundwater management and Flood Managed Aquifer Recharge
(Flood-MAR or FMAR) in other groundwater basins in California.

TEAM ORGANIZATION

Working under the administrative direction of Madera County’s project manager, our team will be led by
Bryan Thoteson, principal engineer for DE (the contracting firm) and Pete Leffler, principal
hydrogeologist for LSCE. Bryan will setve in the lead project manager role, as DE is the proposed lead
firm. DE will provide overall project direction and management, coordination of sub consultants,
expertise in water availability assessments, Infrastructure design, and agricultural engineering. L.SCE will
provide hydrogeologic expertise including assessment and modeling to characterize, quantify, and
prioritize techarge potential. LSCE will also contribute to design and implementation of performance
monitoring plan(s), and support infrastructure design tasks, including pump station design. Company
Presidents Grant Davids (DE) and Vicki Kretsinger Grabert (LSCE) will be available to provide advice
to the team. Key team support personnel include technical task leaders Gerrit Platenkamp (ESA), Malka
Kopell (CCP), Tommy Ostrowski (DE), Ryan Fulton (DE), Nick Watterson (LSCE), and Duncan
MacEwan (ERA). A pool of staff and subject matter specialists from each of the firms on the DE-LSCE
Teatn is available for additional technical support. The proposed key personnel and organization of the
teamn for this project are presented on the organizational chart and staffing table below.

54 Stephanie Anagnoson |
= 4V > Department of Water and
1\'\' &

Wt Natural Resources

DE-LSCE Team

Project Manager Senior Consutlants

Grant Davids, PE (DE)
Vicki Kretsinger Grabert
(LSCE)

Lead - Bryan Thoreson,
PhD, PE {DE)
Pete Leffler, PG, CHG {LSCE}

Identity Land for ‘| Cost Benefit Analyses"
_ 'Rechdrge -
Ryan Fulton, M.Eng, PE
Registered Civil Engineer
Davids Engineering (D€)
Nick Watterson, PG :
Groundwaier Considerations §
Luhdorff & Scalmanini
Consuiting Engineers {LSCE) E

Infrastructure Design

Environmental . " Outreach

Tammy Ostrowski, BSc, PE
Registered Civii Engineer
; Davids Engineering {DE) H
I David Ferguson, PhD, PE, BCEE]
Recharge Basin Design ;
Kennedy / Jenks Consultants (KJ) §
Justin Shobe, PE i
Pump Siation Design
_uhdorff & Scalmanini (LSCE)

Duhcan MacEwn, PhD
Economist

Maika Kopell, MPP
Task Manager
Jufia Van Harn, BA
Associate Faciijtaior
Sacramento State \
Consansus and Collaboration
Frogram {CCP)

Gerrit Platenkamp, PhD
Lead Environmental
Scientist
Environmental Science
Associales (ESA)

Steve Hatchett, FhD
Ecenontist
ERA Economics (SERA)

Supporl Arca or Speciaity
David Ceppos ccp FNMAR Cutreach { R&D
Brooks Ronspies, MS ERA Agsociate Economist
Brandon Ertis, PE DE GI8 Mapping, Land Use
Bernadette Boyle LSCE Modeling

Brandon Hale, PE KJ Civil Designer

Jake Wicks, PE KJ Staif Engineer

Leslie Moulton-Post  ESA Environmental Scientist
Meredith Parkin, JO  ESA Water Rights Acquisition

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 4



2. Qualifications

Formed in 1993, DE provides a broad range of engineering setvices to support the planning, design, and
construction of facilides for irtigation and dtainage at scales ranging from individual fields to entire
irrigation districts. Qur focus is on developing the best facility to meet a given need in a manner that
ptovides high quality operation in a practical and cost-effective manner, LSCE was formed in 1980 and
provides a full complement of groundwater resources services, including conjunctive use planning,
artificial recharge, analyses of surface water/groundwater interaction, land subsidence analyses, and water
budget development.

Davids Engineering, Inc. (www.davidsengineering.com) ptovides professional engineering and
scientific setvices to public agencies, private enfities, and individual landowners responsible for managing
water resources in the Western United States. Founded on a commitment to the highest standards of
professional integrity and intellectual honesty, DE has successfully completed projects in Arizona,
California, Nebraska, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon and Washington and in a handful of developing
nations. From its initial focus on agricultural surface water and groundwater management, the firm has
gradually broadened its technical capabilitiecs to encompass field services and comprehensive data
management, facility design and construction, and remote sensing and GIS services. Most of the projects
completed by DE involve the application of a blend of these capabilities to help clients better manage
surface water and groundwatet resources for increased agricultural productivity and environmental
enhancement. Relevant to this recharge effort, DE staff were active participants and contributors to
Flood Managed Aquifer Recharge (Flood-MAR) studies, with contributions regarding the grower
willingness to flood crops and district ability to deliver water for wintertime flooding of crop land.

Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers (www.lsce.com) is a consulting company with a focus
on the investigation, development, use, protection, and management of groundwater resources. LSCE
staff include approximately 40 technical professionals, including licensed geologists, hydrogeologists,
hydrologists, and engineers expetienced in all aspects of groundwater ranging from hydrogeologic
interpretation, hydrologic modeling, and artificial recharge including aquifer storage and recovery projects
to well and pump station design and construction. In addition to a strong group of hydrogeologists and
watet tesources staff, LSCE has field staff that specialize in monitoring, test, and production well drilling,
installation, and testing; and an engineering group specializing in pump station and water system
distribution design. Relevant to this recharge effort, LSCE staff were active participants and contributors
to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), (Flood-MAR) Research Advisory Committee
(RAC) and the resulting Research and Data (R&D) Development Plan.

DE-LSCE TEAM PARTNERS

A gtoup of four highly qualified firms has been assembled to complement the capabilities of DE. and
LSCE. DE and LSCE have handpicked individuals from these firms for specific roles in planning and
implementing the Madeta County GSA recharge program. ESA will provide expertise and expetience in
evaluating (during concept and design stages) potential environmental impacts of the project, mitigation
tequitements, permitting, and agency coordination. HSA will also provide support in water rights
acquisition as needed. Kennedy Jenks (KJ) will develop design criteria for and design recharge basins
and provide construction services for recharge basin construction and support, as needed, and
infrastructure design tasks, including pump station design. ERA Economics will provide cost-benefit
analysis, assist with developing incentive structures and prioritization of project alternatives, CCP will
assist with outreach and meeting facilitation. Short descriptions of each firm follow.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 5



Environmental Science Associates (https://esassoc.com/) is a leading engineering and environmental
consulting firm established in California in 1969. Founded on the principles of science, technical
excellence, integrity, and credibility, ESA’s 550+ staff provide integrated decision-making and develop
innovative solutions based on robust science, thoughtful policy, and collaborative planning principles.
ESA has decades of experience planning, designing, permitting and building water, flood and habitat
projects. Similar to LSCE, ESA staff were also active participants and contributors to DWR’s Flood-
MAR RAC and R&D Development Plan. We understand environmental issues on Central Valley
projects, and for Flood-MAR projects like this one, we know that if environmental opportunities and
constraints are identified early, project concepts can be developed to maximize support from outside of
the immediate water supply stakeholder community and more-easily complete environmental compliance
and project permitting. The ESA Team has the breadth and depth of knowledge and experience to
etficiently and etfectively execute these services for Madera County.

Kennedy-Jenks (https://www.kennedvienks.com/)

K] is a full service, multidiscipline engineering consulting firm. With nearly 450 professionals in 27 offices
throughout the United States, KJ can take on projects of all sizes and complexity while also providing
personalized service. As an employee-owned firm, KJ's primary focus is developing long-term
relationships with its clients. KJ offers our clients expertise in water, wastewater and stormwater, from
resource management, to planning, design, and construction. KJ’s in-house applied research group,
composed of multi-discipline Ph.ID., chemists, biologists, and engineers directly helps our clients solve
technical challenges while reducing cost and risk.

KJ’s planning and design efforts focus on delivering facilities that are functional, economical and
sustainable, with minimal O&M requirements and streamlined public and regulatory acceptance. I{J has
specific and extensive experience with engineeting design and construction support for recharge basins
in California that will facilitate development of recharge basins in Madera County.

ERA Economics, LLC (www.eraeconomics.com) Founded in 2013 and located in Davis, CA, ERA
specializes in the economics of water resources and agriculture. ERA’s services include feasibility studies,
fiscal and economic impact analyses, and policy evaluation. Members of ERA’s team have worked on
California water and agricultute for over three decades, and understand how economics integrates with
other engineering, technical, and legal analyses to support effective water planning decisions. ERA works

with a range of agency and private clients on problems related to water resources and agriculture in
California and the Western U.S.

Sacramento State Consensus and Collaboration Program (CCP) (www.csus.edu/ccp) is a fee-for-
service, not for profit unit of California State University Sacramento. CCP specializes in assessing,
designing, and managing collaborative projects. CCP is unparalleled in its experience engaging
stakeholders in water resources having supported the DWR California Water Plan, the) Water Use and
Efficiency Program, the Drought Contingency Program, the Proposition 1 Water Storage Investment
Program, the State Drinking Water Program, the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, and SGMA.. CCP
is the consultant of record for DWR’s Flood-MAR Outreach, RAC and R&D Program. CCP has played
a prominent role providing facilitation, mediation, governance, and strategic advice services for 35 basins
in California to support SGMA implementation including the Madera and Chowchilla Subbasins.

KEY DE-LSCE TEAM PERSONNEL
Bryan Thoreson, PhD, PE, Principal Engineer (DE)

Bryan has more than 25 years of professional experience in water resources and irrigation engineering.
He is a registered civil engineer in California (#C56194). He specializes in water flow measurement,

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 6



uncertainty analyses and data management, including database development for water balances, water
tights analysis, ctop water use, land use analysis, and reservoir operations.

Projects with similar services.

Water Budget Development projects: Bryan has played a major role developing water budgets and
quantifying water conserved by various conservation practices for irrigation and water districts in the
Sacramento, San Joaquin and Imperial Valleys of California and elsewhere. Many of these water balances
have supported agricultural land conservatuon programs.

Imperial Irrigation District (IID) Water Conservation Support: He managed the data component task
for the 1ID Efficiency Consetrvation Definite Plan and Near-term Conservation Tasks, working closely
with Steve Hatchett (now with ERA) to help 11D develop its efficiency conservation incentive program.

Agricultural Land Development Feasibility Assessment: The El Dorado County Water Agency engaged
ERA Economics and DFE, to assess historical trends, current agticultural footprine, and the land suitability
and economic potential to develop additional lands in El Dorado County. Duncan MacEwan was the
lead economist. Bryan provided senior review for the project and Ryan Fulton provided land and water
use analysis support to the project.

Pete Leffler, PG, CHG, Principal Hydrogeologist (LSCE)

Pete has more than 30 years of professional experience in groundwater resources and hydrogeology. He
is a Professional Geologist in California (#6475), and Certified Hydrogeologist (#462). He specializes in
groundwater basin hydrogeologic characterization, water balances, groundwater modeling, and safe
yield/sustainable yield analyses; groundwater sustainability plans, monitoring well, test well, and
production well design, construction, aquifer testing, and groundwater quality sampling; groundwater
impact studies related to treated wastewater disposal; evaluation of percolation pond capacity;
groundwater quality studies; groundwater impact studies to support CEQA analyses; expert witness
testimony; assessment of groundwater flow and well yields in fractured bedrock; and aquifer storage and
recovery feasibility studies.

Projects with similar services

Groundwater Basin Characterization projects: Pete has played a major role in evaluating and
characterizing the hydrogeology, groundwater recharge and discharge, and groundwater quality in several
major groundwater basins in California. Many of these projects have been in groundwater basins
dominated by agricultural land uses.

Recharge/ Percolation Pond Capacity projects: Pete evaluated several existing and potential future sites
for petcolation pond capacity and recharge potential, and related impacts to groundwater levels and
quality in the undetlying aquifer. These studies have included field investigations (cone penetrometer
testing (CPT), drilling boreholes and monitoring wells, aquifer testing, percolation capacity testing in test
pits, data analysis, and groundwater modeling. These studies have been conducted for wastewater
treatment plants, imported surface water supplies, and other purposes at several locations in California.

Madera and Chowehilla Subbasins: Pete conducted a detailed hydrogeologic assessment for GSPs
that included evaluation of groundwater recharge and discharge areas, depth to groundwater and
groundwatet elevation contout mapping, evaluation of surface water — groundwater interaction,
delineation of occutrence of several key groundwater quality constituents, and development of
sustainable management critetia. Numerical groundwater modeling conducted for these projects
included incotporation and assessment of on-farm recharge and recharge basins.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 7



Gerrit Platenkamp, PhD, Environmental Science Associates (ESA)

Gerrit Platenkamp has 27 years of environmental consulting experience directing and serving as technical
lead on flood, water and habitat restoration planning and design, NEPA/CEQA analysis, environmental
permitting and compliance, and watershed assessment and planning projects. He has extensive experience
assessing resources that can be affected by flood management facilities and/or water diversion and
conveyance.

Projects with similar services

Programmatic and project-fevel biological impact assessments and mitigation design: Gerrit has completed
biological impact assessment, CEQA/NEPA, permitting, and mitigation design on dozens for flood and
water infrastructure programs and projects.

San Joaguin River Restoration Program’s Long-termz Recapture and Recireulation of Restoration Flows Project
EIS/EIR and Eastside Bypass Improvements Project. Gertit is using hydrologic and hydraulic modeling to
assess impacts on fisheries resources and tertrestrial ripatian habitats; these impact/benefit assessments
are similar and directly applicable to the analysis and assessments that would be conducted for Madera.

David Ferguson, PhD, PE, BCEE, Vice President, Kennedy Jenks (K])

David Ferguson, with Kennedy/Jenks, has four decades of experience in the planning, design,
construction, and operaton of water supply, infrastructure, and treatment projects. His background
includes project and program management, as well as management of engineering and/or operations for
three large water utilities in Southern California. He served as Project Manager for the IEUA’s Recycled
Water Facilities Plan and for their Regional Recycled Water Distribution System design. He also served
as project manager for multiple conjunctive use projects including the $80 million Water Banking
Program for Antelope Valley-Fast Kern Water Agency (AVEK), and the $50 million Palmdale Regional
Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project.

Projects with similar services

W ater Banking Program jor Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK): David served as project
manager for this $80 million multi-phase water banking program with recharge and recovery for water
supply stabilization. The Westside Water Bank is on 1,475 acres of agricultural property and includes 500
acres of low-berm flooding recharge basins with a capacity to spread up to 50,000 ac-ft/year, and
ultimately up to 30 extraction wells with a capacity to produce up to 45 mgd. The Lastside Water Bank
is on a 240-acre site. 'The Eastside Water Bank includes 6 actes of recharge basins with expansion planned
for an additional 66 acres with three to six recovery wells.

Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project: David setved as project manager for this
$50 million large-scale surface spreading IPR groundwater bank in Antelope Valley, California. The
project will ultimately provide up to 50,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) of recharge capacity and 30,000 AFY
of extraction capacity, and is anticipated to serve approximately 50% of PWD’s futute water
demand. The initial Phase 1a is sized to recharge 10,000 AFY and recover 7,500 AFY through the first
4 of 16 recovery wells. The project is anticipated to begin operation in late 2022.

Duncan MacEwan, PhD, Principal Economist (ERA)

Duncan is an economist specializing in water resoutces and agriculture. Prior to co-founding ERA
Economics in 2013, Duncan held a position as a consultant economist with CH2M (now Jacobs) where
he assessed agricultural water supply benefits for a range of planning studies, including a feasibility
assessment for Sites Reservoir. Some of his cutrent projects include agricultural 1mpact analyses, water
valuation and risk assessments, benefit-cost analyses, and water supply feasibility studies. He is the lead
economist on several GSPs in high and medium prtiority groundwater subbasins across California.
Duncan remains actively engaged in developing economic methods and working to integrate economics

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 8



with othet technical studies to support water supply planning. Duncan has developed economic feasibility
analyses and impacts analyses for CEQA/NEPA support for state, federal, and local projects.

Projects with similar services

Agricultural Land Development Feasibility Assessment. The El Dorado County Water Agency
(EDCWA) engaged ERA Economics and DE to assess historical trends, current agricultural footprint,
and the land suitability and economic potential to develop additional lands in El Dorado County. Duncan
was the lead economist. Bryan Thoreson provided senior review for the project and Ryan Fulton
provided land and water use analysis support to the ptoject. EDCWA also engaged ESA to assist with
this project

Economic and Financial Feasibility of Districi-wide Pressurized Irvigation. ERA and DE evaluated the
techincal, financial, and economic feasibility of alternative pressutized irrigation sytems for South San
Joaquin Irrigation District (SSJID). DE developed grower costs for alternative systems. Duncan
developed an economic and financial framework that was used to assess grower willingess and ability to
pay for alternative irrigation systems. A benefit-cost analysis was developed to assess whether alternative
systems wete economically feasibile, and a financial analysis was developed to evaluate District ability to
pay. The resulting analysis was presented to Disttict Staff and Board meetings and a series of workshops.

Malka Kopell, MPP, Senior Facilitator/Mediator (CCP)

Malka has more than 30 years’ experience supporting State, city and county government agencies in
collaborative process design, meeting facilitation, conflict resolution, strategic planning, and training, and
has been part of the CCP family for 20+ years. She has developed and managed engagement and outreach
ptocesses around a wide vatiety of issues, including water quality and sustainability, air quality, land vse
planning, transportation, recycling, public budgeting, neighborhood revitalization, downtown
tedevelopment, youth development and public health.

Projects with similar services

SGM.A Outreach and engagement: Malka has supported outreach and collaboration for SGMA efforts
in Madera, Mendocino, Colusa, Glenn, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara and Butte Counties She provided
consulting on outreach methods, designed and facilitated public meetings, and supported collaborative
task forces focused on both GSA structure and GSP development.

Outreach and engagement to disadvantaged communities. Malka supported State and local agencies in tribal
outreach and engagement with disadvantaged communities. Examples include supporting DWR and the
County of Tulate on funding allocation related to Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM)
ptojects supporting disadvantaged communities and the Office of Environmental Health Hazard
Assessment on tribal outreach telated to climate change.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 9



3. Project Understanding and Approach

The DE-LSCE Team understands the importance of this phased recharge plan for achieving sustainability
objectives in the Madera County GSAs, and also its interrelatedness with other projects and management
actions, (including the land conservation program and water marketing strategy) being implemented by the
GSA to achieve sustainability. In this section, we discuss the DE-LSCE team project understanding,
approach, and present a work plan for developing a phased recharge plan.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Madera County GSA is cutrently implementing GSPs for the Chowchilla, Madera, and Delta-Mendota
Subbasins to achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040. The plans include a mix of projects and
management actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater management. A key component of these GSPs
is the development of projects that enable groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, Flood-MAR, and
spreading basins. A strategic recharge plan and implementation program is necessary to develop a package
of recharge projects that can serve as the County’s roadmap to achieving their sustainability goal.

Having developed the GSPs for the Chowchilla Subbasin and most of the Madera Subbasin, the DE-LSCE
Team is intimately familiar with the projects. Our understandingis that the County desires a phased recharge
program developed through a strategic work approach to cost-effectively meet the following objectives:

1. Develop projects that address “low hanging fruit” first.

2. Develop and implement projects that optimize on-farm recharge versus recharge basins.

3. Identify and pursue funding opportunities for implementation of projects.

4. Identify or establish partnerships with public agencies and non-profits to advance recharge.

APPROACH

The DE-LSCE Team proposes a comprehensive approach (Table 1) that includes six (6) phases of wotk
that together form a strategic and technically robust recharge program led and supported by an experienced
and capable team. Our approach also considers the interaction of recharge projects with other projects and
management actions being implemented by the GSAs. The development and implementation of the plan
over five years will be a dynamic process managed by incorporating milestones at key decision points. In
this way, the County can adaptively manage the project by adjusting the scope and budget as needed at these
points during the course of the project.

The DE-LSCE propose to begin with a planning effort that incorporates nine (9) work groups, each with a
specific focus that together formulate the technical context to identify concept projects (including those in
the GSP), assess feasibility and recharge potential, and quantify conceptual-level costs and benefits. A
benefit-cost analysis (BCA) will be conducted to identify and prioritize programs (i.e. groups of projects)
and evaluate intetactions with other County GSA projects and management actions. The results of the
feasibility assessment and BCA will suppott the County’s pursuit of funding opportunities (including the
upcoming Proposition 68 funding) and establish projects to advance into the design phases.

We anticipate that the planning phase would identify areas within the GSA to target for recharge as well as
the methods of supplying and distributing the water to these areas. Pre-design (Phase 2) would identify
specific sites for the improvements. Once sites ate selected, phased design (Phase 3) and environmental
compliance (Phase 4) will begin. Services During Construction (Phase 5) and Monitoring and Reporting
(Phase 6) would follow and coincide with project construction.

The proposed approach incorporates a strong environmental science team throughout all phases to support
planning, preliminary and final project design and; complete studies to support CEQA, NEPA and
permitting, develop and obtain permits, and complete compliance documentation.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 10



Table 1. Work approach summary with lead (L) and supporting (S) firms identified.

PROPOSED PROJECT TEAM
w 8
Tasks Description/Objective Deliverable Objectives al g = E = ol 3
put | w (S :{7
PHASE #1 — Planning
1- Objective statement Work.p/?n and concise ob)e.ctlve stgtement‘ with project Work F’Ian &
description to support consistency in planning tasks and Project 1-4 LIS S8
and work plan o . .
facilitate early outreach and collaboration efforts. Concept Flier
. i ilabl
2 - Water rights and water Techn‘lcal assessment of avalllab. e water from the targeted
Gy supplies to support the application for temporary and/or ™ 1,2 S| S S
availability assessment ,
permanent water rights for recharge purposes.
3 - Existing regional inventory and characterization of the primary conveyance ™ 194 L s
conveyance facilities Tfacilities existing in and adjacent to the study area. L
4 - Landowner outreach Landowner and stakeholder outreach to assess and ™ 13 s sl
and interest assessment quantify interest in Flood-MAR and/or in-lieu recharge.
5- Hyd rogeologllc and Characterization and prioritization of recharge areas using
recharge potential . ) ) ) ™ 1,2 SilL S
available data/information, and modelfing
assessment
6 - Screening level Initiol identification of potential environmental issues,
environmental requirements, or constraints that may influence the project T™ 1 S|S|S|LIS|S
assessments and provide recommended CEQA compliance strategy.
7 - Feasibility assessment Bused on TMs, develop project alternatives that can be Phased
R . evaluated, preferred alternatives selected and formulated Recharge 1-3 L|S|S|S|[S]|S
of project alternatives )
into a phased recharge program. Plan
Coordination and collaboration with stakeholders to Meetin
8 - Public outreach maintain effective communication, input, and review of ) g 1,2, 4 S|1S5|S 5|51 L
; . . . Minutes
deliverables (technical support included with those tasks)
9- Funding opportunities Support th? County in identifying potential funding Oppartunity 5 Lisis|sisls
opportunities. summary

MILESTONE #1 — Phased Recharge Plan including Revised Budget and Schedule for Upcoming Phases

PHASE #2 - Pre-Design

1- Preliminary engineering

Topographic data colfection, utility and constraint

Engineering

data collection mapp{ng, hydrogeologic/geotechnical investigation, and Data report 1,2 L|S|5 5
land title research
2- l.’rellmlnary Biological and Botanical assessment(s) and studies Preliminary 1,2 S|1SiSsyL
environmental Report
3 - Preliminary design & Develop design criteria for pump station, pipelines, and Design
N . 12 LSS
criteria development recharge basins Report

MILESTONE #2 — Preliminary Design including Revised Budget

and Schedule for Upcoming Phases

PHASE #3 - Phased Design & PHASE #4 - Permitting and Environmental Compliance

Various design milestones,

Surveying, 30-100% Design Phases, Value-Engineering,

Phase Design

Agency Approvals and Local Permits

al Reports

bidding, drawings and Recharge Performance Monitoring Plan, Operations and Renorts 1,2 LS55 5
specification Maintenance Manual, land-easement acquisition P
CEQA/NEPA Environmental and Cultural Resources Documentation, Environment 12 slslsiL s

MILESTONE #3 — Final Design and Permitting including Revised Budget and Schedule for Upcoming Phases [

PHASE #5 - Services During Construction & PHASE #6 - Monitoring & Reporting

Bidding documents, advertising and award, contract

. . , ) . Inspection
Construction management administration, labor compliance, construction RE orts 1,2 LiS|S}|S S
management, quality assurance, close-out, as-builts P
Well construction Monitor groundwater level and water quality Well Reports 1 SIL}IS|S S

*Specialty subcontractors will provide focused engineering data collection efforts as necessary (e.g. geotechnical borings and surveying).

PROPOSED WORK PLAN
The work plan covers a five-year period for engineering consulting services to develop and implement a
phased recharge plan, including support for acquiring temporary and permanent water rights. The tasks
comptising Phase 1 are described below, followed by overviews of the subsequent phases. Detailed work
plans for subsequent phases will be developed at the conclusion of each milestone.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services




Phase 1 - Planning
Task 1 - Objective Statement and Work Plan

The DE-LSCE Team will conduct a work planning session with the project team members and County staff
to collaborate regarding the County’s objectives for the recharge program. From this, the DE-LSCE team
will prepare a detailed work plan and a concise flier summarizing the program being developed to facilitate
outreach, coordination, collaboration, and interest in the project by landowners, potential recharge partners,
and the general public.

Task 2 - Water Rights and Water Availability Assessment

The DE-LSCE Team will work closely with the County staff and other contractors, as directed, to support
the County’s efforts to obtain temporary and permanent water rights for recharge projects.

Task 3 - Existing Regional Convevance Facilities

The DE-LSCE Team will use existing available information and contacts with local water managers to
inventoty and characterize existing conveyance facilities in the region to support the strategic use of existing
facilities to generate the most cost-effective solution(s). The characterization will focus on attributes of
facilities that influence or impact their ability to convey flood waters ot Reclamation Act Section 215 water
to the project area for Flood-MAR, in-lieu recharge, or basin spreading. This task will also facilitate the
cootdination with regional water purveyors, potential partnership opportunities, and the identification of
project(s) that can potentially be “fast-tracked.”

Task 4 - Landowner Outreach and Interest Assessment

Aquifer recharge planning involves diverse interrelated topics. The recent work of DWR’s Flood-MAR RAC
and R&D Development Plan, illustrates myriad questions, potential conflicts, and hopeful opportunities for
mutual benefits as directly affected landowners, (and other public stakeholders,) GSAs and technical
specialists seek common ground on recharge solutions. Successful implementation of such solutions will
tequire early (even before environmental compliance) understanding of representative stakeholder interests
and when applicable, competing needs that must be reconciled. CCP will work with County project
leadership and DE-LSCE Team colleagues to identify key project aspects to be tested/discussed with
potentially affected stakeholders. As a neutral third party, CCP will be available to work directly with
stakcholders in workshops/interviews to assess their interests ot to act as process advisors to County staff.

Task 5 - Hydrogeologic and Recharge Potential Assessment

The DE-LSCE Team will conduct the preliminary evaluation of hydrogeologic conditions in Madera County
GSA areas relative to potential on-farm recharge and permanent recharge basin sites. This hydrogeologic
assessment will be based on existing data such as soils mapping, geologic cross-sections, local and regional
stratigtaphy relative to aquifets and aquitatds (e.g., ptesence/absence of Corcoran Clay), locations of existing
techarge basins, groundwater levels/quality, and previous groundwater model simulations. The optimal
general distribution of new sites across each subbasin will be evaluated relative to where additional recharge
is most needed, maximizing retention of recharged water within each Subbasin, and preliminary assessment
of potential surficial percolation rates.

Task 6 - Screening Level Environmental Assessments

ESA will survey potential project sites using desktop- and preliminary field-assessments to identify sensitive
biological resources. ESA’s biologists will work closely with the team to consider which biological resources
may have potential to be affected by the project(s).

Task 7 - Feasibility Assessment of Project Alternatives

Task 7 will incorporate the costs, benefits, and stakeholder feedback developed under Tasks 1 through 6 to
develop a phased recharge plan and implementation program for the GSP projects, assesses feasibility and

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 12



rechatge potential, and quantifies conceptual-level costs and benefits. Benefit-cost analysis will be conducted
to assess and prioritize individual projects and alternatives. The analysis will also identify and evaluate
Interactions and consistency with other County GSA projects and management actions. Conceptual-level
estimates of costs per acre-foot of recharge developed for the GSP will be refined and improved. Project
benefits that accrue to individual stakeholdets, the GSA, and the broader Subbasin will be quantified. The
feasibility assessment would identify preferred project(s) from the recharge program for fast-track
development for the 2021 Proposition 68 grant solicitation for GSP implementation projects. The land
conservation program and water marketing strategy that the Madera County GSA is considering
implementing may have important Interactions with recharge project alternatives. The Team will identify
and, where possible, quantify these interactions as part of its analysis.

Task 8 - Public Outreach

CCP and its DE-LSCE Team colleagues will work with the County to identify optimal milestones in each
project phase to conduct broad public outreach. Starting in Phase 1, we will prepare summary materials of
applicable tasks to present a comprehensive view of the project to-date with a focus on outcomes from the
feasibility assessment (Task 7) and a summary of representative stakeholder interests from Task 4. Outreach
will be conducted through in person and/or virtual meetings, informational materials provided on the GSA
website, and a media strategy to enhance information sharing through the GSA’s existing network of
interested parties, affiliated groups and local media. While this outreach will be conducted priot to initiation
of CEQA and NEPA actvities, it will create an invaluable administrative record to enhance project scoping
under a future environmental compliance context and will show that the County was rigorous in providing
stakeholders an active voice in project development.

Task 9 - Funding Opportunities

DE-LSCE Team members will wotrk with the County to track available grants and similar opportunities
provided by the State and Federal governments and will be available in a support capacity. The County and
GSA may use this suppott to prepare funding applications; coordinating technical content and working with
stakeholders to identify and memorialize mutual support for such opportunities.

MILESTONE 1—A phased recharge plan will be developed at this stage. Scope and budget will be
reassessed and proceeding to Phase 2 will be at the sole discretion of the County.

Phase 2 — Preliminary Design

Preliminary Design will include preliminary geotechnical, surveying, technical analysis, and environmental
evaluations to charactetize the identified areas for recharge and identify specific sites (or series of sites) to
scteen for implementaton. Hydrogeologic/geotechnical field investigations will be conducted to
refine/validate the specific locations for their recharge suitability. Groundwater modeling simulations would
evaluate benefits and potential consequences (e.g. discharge to surface water features) from conducting
techatge at the prioritized locations. The results of these investigations would refine the feasibility evaluation,
rank the preferred recharge areas, identify possible sites, and prepare preliminary designs and design criteria.
The environmental analysis will consider the presence of sensitive biological resources and critical supporting
ecosystem processes that may be affected by the project, impact avoidance and minimization strategies, and
permitting strategies. The need for fish screening would also be evaluated.

MILESTONE 2 — Reassess scope and budget before proceeding to Phase 3 and 4.

Phase 3 - Phased Design and Engineering

Design of pump stations, pipeline and possibly other conveyance systems and recharge basins will be
required. Pump stations would likely be utilized as part of the conveyance systems that deliver from the
watet source(s) to the recharge basins. The overall pump station design would include complete civil,

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services K]



mechanical, and electrical designs. Pipelines would be designed to convey pumped water to recharge basins
and fields for Flood-MAR. Rechatge basins would be designed to receive water and spread it for recharge.

Phase 4 - Permitting and Environmental Compliance

The DE-LSCE Team will provide permitting and compliance support for the phased recharge program and
the individual projects in the program. This will include assessment of the need for, and preparation of,
vatious local, state, and federal permits as well as CEQA and NEPA compliance. ESA and CCP will support
any mandated public engagement for permitting and environmental compliance such that the County and
GSA capitalize on prior outreach and engagement to enhance the administrative record reflecting
stakeholder opportunities for input and involvement.

MILESTONE 3 — Reassess scope and budget before proceeding to Phase 5 and 6.

Phase 5 - Services during Construction

The DE-LSCE Team will provide full technical support services prior to and during construction including
advertising, bidding, contract administration, pre-construction, construction management, submittal review,
field inspections, special inspections, quality assurance and material testing, biological monitoring (if
required), change order processing, and cost control support.

Phase 6 — Monitoring and Reporting

Monitoring and reporting for on-farm rechatge and recharge basins will be closely integrated with GSP
Annual Reporting, which requires reporting of the amounts of recharge accomplished at each site for new
projects. It is likely that many of the designated monitoring wells used to collect water levels and water
quality around recharge sites will be part of the overall GSP monitoring network. This task will involve
assessment of the recharge monitoring plan and how to best integrate it with overall GSP Annual Reporting.

PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE

The DE-LSCE Team has drafted a five-year schedule for the recharge progtam. The schedule for Phase
One is more detailed and the DE-LSCE Team anticipates having a recharge program sufficiently developed
to plug into the SGMA implementation grant PSPs anticipated to be released in the fall of 2021. The schedule
will be re-evaluated and revised at the conclusion of each milestone as indicated in the table above.

2020 2021
PHASE 1 - PLANNING July-Sept  Qct-Dec | Jan-March April-June July-Sept Oct-Dec
T1 - Objective statement & waork plan
T2 - Waterrights and water availability assessment
T3 - Existing regional conveyance facilities
T4 - Landowner outreach and interest assessment
T5 - Hydrogeologic and recharge potential assessment
T6 - Screening-level environmental assessments
T7 - Feasibility assessment of project alternatives
T8 - Public outreach
T9 - Funding Opportunities
2021 2022 2023 2024 . 2025
lan- May- Sept-| Jan- May- Sept-] Jan- May- Sept-{| Jan- May- Sept-| Jan- May-
Phases April  Aug Dec |April Aug Dec |April Aug Dec |April Aug Dec |April July

P2 - Pre-Design
P3 - Phased Design

P4 - Permitting and
Environmental Compliance

P5 - Services During Construction
P6- Monitoring and Reporting

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 14



4. Cost

The DE-LSCE Team has prepared a detailed budget for Phase 1 planning for the recharge program
(Table 2) and is prepared to enter into a not-to-exceed contract to complete Phase 1 of the program. The
total budget for Phase 1 is estimated to be $632,811. We anticipate working closely with the Madera
County GSA to develop a detailed phased recharge program work plan and, if necessary, to scale the
work plan and the budget as needed to align with available funding. Task-level budgets for Phases 2-6
are not provided due to the uncertainty in scope.

Table 2. Detailed Budget Detail for Phase 1

| Labor Hours by Staff Member/Firm and Project Task/Subtask
2020
Hourly
Team Member Rate
DE SR. Principal Engineer $208 38,
DE Supervising
Engineer/Scientist $199 184
DE Senior Engineer/Scientist | $182 24 8 50 16 24 4 200 4 16 346
DE Associate
Enginesr/Scientist | #162 120 90 210
DE Staff Engineer i $154 12 40 100 36 80 260 16 544
DE Technicall Project $100 4 1 1 2 1 1 4 1 1 16
Assistant
ESA Lfead BEnvironmental $300 g 16 50 10 104
Scientist
ESA Environmental Scientist $240 12 32 100 30 174
ESA Environmental Scientist | $140 200 20 220
KJ Engineer/Scientist 9 $275 12 8 4 32 56
KJ Engineer/Scientist 5 $195 12 24 16 56 108
KJ Engineer/Scientist 3 $185 24 8 56 88
LSCE Frincipal $220 18 8 8 8 110 8 50 8 8 226
LSCE Supervising $210 24 4 4 4 150 4 80 4 4 278
Hydrogeologist
LSCE Staff
HydrogeologisGIS $140 2 110 60 172
ERA Sr. Principal Economist $225 12 40 52
ERA Frincipal Economist $185 17 190 207
ERA Assoc. Economist $135 230 230}
CCP Managing Sr Mediator i | $208 12 5 2 2 21
CCP Senior Mediator I $188 18 36 40 8 102
CCP Assistant Faciiitator Il $126 6 50 8 64
CCP Admin. Support Asstnt. $59 2 4 6
Total Labor Costs by Task =| $42,511| $30,388| $29,616| $21,932| $123,768| $76,366] $270,036| $19,488} $12,592 $626,697
Direct Expenses by Firm
DE $ 140 $ 2801% 5608 140 $ 280(% 560 $1,960
ESA $ 140 $ 2,500 $2,640
KJ $ 140 3140
LSCE $ 140 $ 140 $280
ERA $ 140 $ 140 $280
CcCcpP $ 140 $ 337 $ 337 $814
Total Direct Expenses = $840 $0 $280 $897 $280 $2,500 $420 $897 $0 $6,114
Total Cost by Firm
DE $10,750| $9,308| $27,296] $11,220 $41,968| $1,226| $116,956 $2,980 $7,068 $228,772
ESA $5,420| $18,480 $0 $0 $0| $69,500 $13,000 $0 $0 $106,400
KJ $5,780 $0 $0 $0 $10,840 $5,540 $28,960 $0 $0 $51,120
LSCE $9,420| $2,600} $2,600| $2,600 $71,240] $2,600 $36,200( $2,600 $2,600 $132,460
ERA $5,985 $0 $0 $0 $0 30 $75,340 $0 $0 $81,325]
CCP $5,996 $0 $0 $9,008 $0 30 $0| $14,805 $2,924 $32,734
Total Phase 1 Costs $43,351| $30,388| $29,896| $22,829| $124,048| $78,866| $270,456| $20,385| $12,592 $632,311

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 15



The detailed Phase 1 budget estimate was assembled based upon the Team’s collective experience
implementing similar projects and programs and the understanding and estimation of the level of effort
required to achieve the County’s objectives and outcomes as stated in the RFP. The estimate includes the
following assumptions:

1. No travel restrictions (Le. COVID 19-related) will be in affect and limit work activities,
outreach or in-person meetings.

2. Development of the objective statement and detailed work plan will include an in-person
meeting with the County staff and project team members at the County office.

3. 'The water rights and water availability assessment will be led by the County and the DE-LSCE
team will provide support as limited by available budget.

4. GIS coverages of regional water conveyance infrastructure will be obtained from publicly
available sources ot can be made available from local water managers.

5. Landowner outreach will include up 2 days of consecutive, in person stakeholder interviews by
CCP Senior Mediator Facilitator, associated suppott activities and summarization of interview
outcomes.

6. Site visits for reconnaissance-level environmental assessments will be limited to 2 biologists for
one day/site for up to 3 sites, plus travel time and related expenses. No wetland mapping or
critical habitat identification will be completed.

7. No fish screen will be requited for diversion and no special studies will be necessary during the
planning phase of the project.

8. Funding opportunity support will be limited to research to identify potential funding
opportunities and associated background information. Does not include consultant preparation
of full grant (or similar) proposals.

Although not guaranteed, Table 3 provides planning-level estimates for Phases 2-6 based on the
information available to the DE-LSCE Team at this time and the Team’s collective experience. As
indicated in the work plan section, the budget for work beyond Phase 1 will be reassessed and revised at
each milestone based on the County’s discretion and the best available information at that time.

Table 3. Planning-level budgets for Phases 2 - 6

Estimated Cost by Phase by Firm for Phases 2 - 6
Phase 3 - Phase 4 - Permitting & Services | Monitorin:
Team Member Phase 2 - Phased Environmental ’ During & ¢ Totals

Pre-Design Design Regulatory Compliance | Construction | Reporting
Davids Engineering $140,000 $292,500 $70,000 $644,000 $33,333| $1,179,833
Environmental Science Associates $350,000 $42,500 $550,000 $277,500 $33,333| $1,253,333
Kennedy-Jenks $115,000 $250,000 $70,000 $340,000 $33,333 $808,333
Luhdorff and Scalmanini $360,000 $290,000 $70,000 $370,000 $100,000| $1,190,000
ERA Economics $20,000 $15,000 $140,000 $0 $0j  $175,000
Sac State Consensus and Collaboration Program $14,000 $16,000 $29,000 $0 $0 $59,000
Sub $100,000 $50,000 $0 $206,000 $0 $366,000
Totals $1,099,000 $956,000 $929,000 $1,837,500  $200,000| $5,021,500

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 16



5. Project Experience Success and References

This section describes representative projects completed by DE, CCP, ERA, ESA, KJ and LSCE that
highlight experience working on a combination of agticultural land programs, sustainable groundwater
management, and underlying incentive structures that are similar to the recharge program technical
requirements. Additionally, though not described below, the DE-led Team that includes CCP, ERA and
LSCE are working together on other GSP development projects in the Sacramento Valley and other
water and agticultural planning projects for state and local agencies.

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS

DE, ERA, CCP and LSCE Project
Madera and Chowchilla Subbasins GSP Development and 2020 Annual Report Preparation.

Client: County of Madera. Years: 2018-2020.

ERA, CCP, LSCE and DE supported the Madera Subbasin Coordination Committee and the Chowchilla
Subbasin GSP Advisory Committee in developing GSPs for the critically-overdrafted Madera and
Chowchilla Subbasins. DE and LSCE also supported the development of the first Annual Reports
submitted in April 2020.

In 2018, the GSAs comptising the Chowchilla and Madera Subbasins began developing comprehensive,
cootdinated GSPs to comply with the requitements of SGMA. GSP development was guided by an active
stakeholder engagement process in both subbasins. The stakeholder engagement process and resulting
GSP development leveraged longstanding water management planning activities in each subbasin,
including an existing groundwater management plan; an active surface water and groundwater monitoring
program; the Madera County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP); the Chowchilla
Water District and Madera Irrigation District Water Management Plans (WMPs); urban water
management plans; and other past studies.

Development of the GSP followed a phased, iterative process. Activities were strategically sequenced to
meet an aggressive schedule, resulting in the completion of two GSPs by January 2020. Interrelated
components wete developed in parallel when appropriate and efficient, including the Plan Area, Basin
Setting, Monitoting Network, Sustainable Management Criteria, and Projects and Management Actions.
DE, LSCE, and ERA worked closely together and with the GSAs and other consultants throughout the
development process. Key efforts include development of the MCSim Groundwater Model and
coordination with other GSPs in the Madera Subbasin.

The team worked with the GSAs and stakeholders to establish sustainable management goals and criteria,
charactetize potential undesirable results, and establish Minimum Thresholds, Measurable Objectives,
and Interim Milestones. Projects and Management Actions were developed and evaluated using the
MCSim model, water budget information, economic analyses, and other tools in an integrated analysis of
the feasibility, benefits, and costs of existing and potential projects and management actions.

The DE, LSCE, and ERA team successfully completed and submitted all sections of the GSPs by January
2020, and the first Annual Reports for each GSP (April 2020) in compliance with the SGMA
requirements for critically overdrafted subbasins.

Similarities to Proposed Project
e Active, strategic engagement of beneficial users and other stakeholders.

e Tterative, coordinated development of GSP components to deliver a compliant and
implementable plan that provides economic, societal, and environmental sustainability.

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consuiting Services 17



e Continuity and seamless integration of prior technical efforts and management activities,
including hydrogeologic characterization, surface water and groundwater monitoring, and
conjunctive water management projects.

e Cost-effective, on-time delivery of draft GSP and interim products.

Relevance to Recharge Program

This project is directly related to the recharge program development under the local GSPs and
demonstrates the qualifications and experience of the DE-LSCE Team in efficiently completing
supporting analysis and developing plans.

Client References:

Doug Welch

Chowchilla Water District, General Resources Manager
327 S. Chowchilla Blvd, Chowchilla, CA, 93610

(559) 665.3747, dwelch@cwdwater.com

ERA and DE Project
Evaluation of Restoration and Recharge Potential

Client: Butte County Department of Water and Resource Conservation. Years: 2018.

DE and ERA worked with Butte County to identify and create tools to help the County achieve
groundwater sustainability. DE and ERA develped a feasibility assessment of in-lieu recharge options
using dual source irrigation systems (L.e. systems capable of using both surface water and groundwater)
for specific regions and parcels in the County. Duncan MacEwan was the lead economist and Byron
Clark was the lead agricultural engineer. DE developed a geospatial analysis of lands suitable for recharge
and a spreadsheet tool to calculate potential surface water delivery costs based on parcel charcteristics.
ERA bult an economic and financial spreadsheet model to assess economic benefits, quantify the value
of additional water supply, and assess economic feasibility of potential alternatives for sets of parcels 1n
Butte County.

Similarities to Proposed Project

e DE-ERA team experience assessing land use and economic factors affecting the feasibility of
developing recharge benefits for groundwater sustainability, which is directly applicable to the
Madera County GSA program.

¢ Demonstrates our ability to manage multiple spatial data sources (maps) and turn that
information into actionable decision items for a county program to develop recharge basins.

Reference name and contact information:

Christina Buck, PhD

Butte County Department of Water and Resource Conservation, Assistant Director
308 Nelson Ave, Oroville, CA, 95965

(530) 552.3593, cbuck@buttecounty.net

LSCE Projects
North Rechatge Facility, Mendota Pool Group EIS/EIR

As part of the technical analysis of the Mendota Pool Groups (MPG) NEPA and CEQA analysis of
projects for an extension of the MPG’s water exchange program, LSCE evaluated soil and geologic
conditions within the MPG study area to identify preferred locations for a surface recharge facility. The
analysis included evaluation of existing soil and geologic data, analysis of direct push subsurface geologic

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 18



data collected from on-site field borings, and modeling of the influence recharge projects would have on
groundwater conditions.

The field testing covered an area that was approximately 1,000 acres along the west side of the Mendota
Pool in Fresno County. The analysis of existing and field data resulted in a ranking of locations for siting
the recharge facility. LSCE evaluated the frequency and amount of surface water available for recharge
to help design the recharge basin operations. Following the development of the frequency and amount
of expected rechatge based on estimates of infiltration rates from the field investigation, LSCE analyzed
the influence rechatge operations would have on the groundwater system by utilizing a numerical
groundwater flow model. This effott also helped identify where monitoting wells could be sited to assess
the effectiveness and influence recharge operations have on the underlying aquifer system.

Reference name and contact information:

Jim Stillwell

President, Mendota Pool Group

(559) 659.3942 (office)

(559) 479.2109 (mobile), Jim@bakerfarming.com

Field Investigation of Recharge Potential on Ten Section, Kern County

In 2017, LSCE conducted a field investigation on Ten Section Oil Field in Kern County to evaluate this
area for recharge potential. This work built on a preliminary investigation of hydrogeology of the study
area also conducted by LSCE in 2000. The study area was comprsed of 400 acres bordered by
operational water banks. This investigation aimed to provide data on infiltration rates in different areas
of the property which could then be utlized by the client to assess the feasibility of a water banking
project on this land. Using soil data from NRCS (Natural Resources Conservation Service), LSCE
examined the study atea for vatiations in soil types. Based on this information, a total of 16 test locations
were identified to account for soil variability and site variability.

The field testing conducted by LSCE involved the consideration of two different methodologies to
determine percolation rates in soils; traditional percolation tests and double ring infiltration tests. Rates
calculated using traditional percolation tests are attributed to both lateral and vertical flow and are
commonly used for septic system testing, whereas rates calculated using double ring infiltration tests
provide vertical percolation rates. Because the traditional percolation test results do not distinguish
between vertical and lateral flow the results from this type of test would not be representative of a soil’s
vertical percolation properties which are important for recharge basins used for water banking projects.
Therefore, LSCE used the double ring infiltration methodology for this investigation (in accordance with
ASTM Standard D3385).

This investigation provided initial insight into the suitability of Ten Section Oil Field for water banking,
Many test sites exhibited high infiltration rates suggesting these areas would be good candidates for
recharge projects. Based on these findings, LSCE recommended further exploration of these candidate
sites via shallow soil borings and pilot testing.

Reference name and contact information:

Greg Wegis, Partner
Wegis and Young Property Management, LLC
(661) 201.0068, greg(@wegisandyoung.com

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 19



ESA Projects

Water Replenishment District of Southern California (WRD), West Coast Basin Groundwater
Management Plan Program EIR (includes GW replenishment projects using storm water and
recycled water)

ESA prepared a PEIR document for the proposed Central and West Coast Groundwater Basins Master
Plan (GBMP). The GBMP will guide future development of groundwater resources in the Central and
West Coast Basins. The Groundwater Reliability Improvement Project is one component of the GBMP.
The GBMP identifies potential programs and management actions that will enhance the likelihood that
local groundwatet supplies will be sufficient to meet the water right allocations assigned to groundwater
producers undet the respective Judgments for the Basins for the near future. The GBMP also identifies
potential programs and actions that can increase local groundwater supplies beyond adjudicated limits in
a cost effective manner, improve water quality, and reduce dependence on imported water. These
potential programs and actions wete cartied out by one or more of the stakeholders in the Basins, and/or
by the WRD of Southern California itself. For this project, ESA coordinated with WRD, the Los Angeles
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Basin MWD, West Basin MWD, and LA County
Sanitation District.

Reference name and contact informadon:

Esther Rojas
Senior Water Resources Planner
(562) 921.5521

Woodland Davis Clean Water Agency, Davis-Woodland Water Supply Project/RD 2035 Joint
Intake Project

On behalf of the Woodland Davis Clean Water Agency, RD 2035, and Reclamation, ESA led all
environmental documentation, permitting, water tights support, and compliance monitoring for the
Davis-Woodland Watet Supply Project/RD 2035 Joint Intake Project. The project included construction
of 2 new joint intake structute and fish screen on the Sacramento River, a new water treatment plant, and
conveyance and distribution pipelines to serve the cities of Davis and Woodland and the University of
California, Davis. The project required preparing an EIR and Environmental Assessment that addressed
strong scrutiny of and opposition to the project, and included the need to support a new water right and
obtain multiple permits for construction and operation. ESA oversaw a series of special studies
evaluating: potential changes to the hydrology and water quality of the Sacramento River and Delta using
CalSim IT and DSM2; potential fisheries effects; potential surface water, land use, and agricultural effects
on water transfer partners; and potential effects of installing facilities on wetlands, through sensitive
habitats, and across potentially sensitive cultural resources. ESA led project permitting; provided
assistance with the State Revolving Fund loan application; conducted cultural and biological resources
field surveys, and construction monitoting and reporting; and completed supplemental CEQA and
NEPA documentation.

Reference name and contact information:

Tim Busch
General Manager

(530) 661.5963

Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District (RRBWSD), Stockdale Integrated Banking Project
EIR

ESA prepated the EIR for the Stockdale Integrated Banking Project, to be located outside of Bakersfield
in western Kern County. Additionally, the ESA Team prepared biological and cultural resources technical

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 20



reports as well as CEQA documentation for the project. IRWD, together with RRBWSD, are in the
process of developing over 500 acres of land with groundwater recharge and extraction facilities. The
project will be integtated into RRBWSD’s existing Conjunctive Use Program and provides RRBWSD
with additional rechatge and storage capability and operational flexibility. The project allows IRWD to
store water for supply reliability and redundancy.

Reference name and contact information:

Dan W. Bartel
Assistant General Managetr/District Engineer
(661) 589.6045

K] Projects
Groundwater Banking Program, Antelope Valley-East Ketn Water Agency (AVEK), Palmdale, CA

AVEK is pursuing an $80 million multi-phase water banking program with recharge and recovery for
water supply stabilizadon. The Westside Water Bank is on 1,475 acres of agricultural property and
includes 500 acres of low-berm flooding rechatge basins with a capacity to spread up to 50,000 ac-ft/year,
and ultimately up to 30 extraction wells with a capacity to produce up to 45 mgd. The Eastside Water
Bank is on a 240-ac site. The Eastside Water Bank includes 6 acres of recharge basins with expansion
planned for an additional 66 acres with three to six recovery wells.

Palmdale Regional Groundwater Rechatge and Recovery Project for Recycled Water and Raw
Water, Palmdale Water District, Antelope Valley, CA

Palmdale Watet District is implementing the Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery
Project, a large-scale sutface spreading IPR groundwater bank in Antelope Valley, California. The project
will ultimately provide up to 50,000 acre-feet per yeat (AFY) of recharge capacity and 30,000 AFY of
extraction capacity, and is anticipated to serve approximately 50% of PWD’s future water demand. The
initial Phase 1a is sized to rechatge 10,000 AFY and recover 7,500 AFY through the first 4 of 16 recovery
wells. The project is anticipated to begin operation in late 2022.

CPP Project
DWR Flood Managed Aquifer Recharge Outreach Program and Research and Data

Development Plan

Clients: California Depatrtment of Water Resources Year: 2018-current. David Ceppos is the program
manager of CCP’s suppott to DWR for their implementation of Flood-MAR. CCP’s services have
included development of the Flood-MAR Communications and Engagement Plan, design and facilitation
of public wotkshops and field tours in pilot study locations, and convening the Research Advisory
Committee (RAC), the latter which resulted in the first California Flood-MAR R&D Plan. The R&D Plan
is a compilation of recommendations from the RAC and its 13 subcommittees on topics such as
Infrastructure Conveyance and Hydraulics; Crop Systems Suitability; Soils, Geology, and Aquifer
Characterization; Land Use Planning and Management; Economic Analysis; and Local, State, and Federal
Policies and Legal Considerations. CCP provided strategic consultation on the membership and
formation of the RAC, the study atreas for Subcommittees, and the structure, content and format of all
materials and discussions during RAC meetings.

Reference name and contact information:

Denise England
Water Resoutces Program Director
(559) 636.5000, dengland(@co.tulare.ca.us

DE-LSCE Team Proposal for Madera RFP-2020-06 Recharge Study Consulting Services 21









Exhibit “A”


















NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. Section 1 (“Term") is amended to read:
“This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2020, and will terminate upon
completion of the services as outlined in the Proposals (“Proposals” as
defined in this section shall mean the Proposal, Second Proposal, Third
Proposal, and Fourth Proposal) or June 30, 2023, whichever is sooner.”
2, Section 2 ("Scope of Services”) is amended to read:
“CONSULTANT shall perform its services over one and a half to three years
(based on budget availability) in accordance with Phase 1 of the Proposal.
CONSULTANT shall perform its services as outlined in CONSULTANT’s
Second, Third and Fourth Proposals.”
3. Section 3 (“Compensation and Invoicing”) is amended fo read:
“CONSULTANT shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed:
e Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) for the Proposal,
e One Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars
($186,962.00) for the Second Proposal;
¢ One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Dollars

($117,446.00) for the Third Proposal,

Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Dollars ($66,720.00)."

(Referred to collectively herein as Proposals). CONSULTANT's
compensation under this Agreement, including the labor rates charged for
work under this Agreement, shall not be increased without the written
modification of this Agreement by the COUNTY and CONSULTANT.

Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30) days after

Page 2




5.

CONSULTANT’s regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this
Agreement are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance
acceptable to COUNTY, of the deliverables required under the Proposals.
Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for compensating any of its
sub-consultants under this Agreement.

Section 4 (“Notices”) subsection labeled “With Copy to” is amended to read:

“With Copy to

Karen Scrivner, Clerk of the Board
Madera County Board of Supervisors
200 West 4th Street

Madera, CA 93637"

Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement

shall remain in full force and effect.

i
1
"
1l
fl
I
1l
I
1
"
I
"
Il

Page 3







EXHIBIT “A”




Proposal for Professional Engineering Services

To: Ms. Stephanie Anagnoson

Department of Water and Natural Resources
Madera County

From: Davids Engineering, Inc.
www.davidsengineering.com
Date: 12/10/21

Subject: 30% Design for Projects 1 - Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction
Phase 1 and East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1

Davids Engineering, Inc. {DE) is pleased to provide this proposal to Madera County {County) for
engineering services associated with 30% design for Projects 1 — Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for
Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (Project).
While DE will complete the majority of work associated with 30% design of the Project, Environmental
Science Associates (ESA) will perform an environmental fatal flaw analysis related to necessary diversion
and conveyance infrastructure. DE and ESA are collectively referred to as the DE Team.

1 Project Overview and Objective

The Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) are currently implementing
Groundwater Sustainability Plans {GSPs) for the Chowchilla, Madera, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins to
achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040, The GSPs include a mix of projects and management
actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater management. A key component of these GSPs is the
development of prajects that enable groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, Flood-MAR, and
spreading basins. To aid in groundwater recharge project development, Madera County (County) is
currently engaged in development of a strategic recharge plan and Implementation program. For
Chowchilla, the project as developed in the strategic recharge plan includes the planning, design,
environmental permitting, construction, construction management, monitoring, assessment,
stakeholder outreach, and education associated with the construction of four new turnouts with
appropriate conveyance to divert flood flows to approximately 2,900 acres of existing farmiand for
recharge as flood-managed aquifer recharge {Flood-MAR) and/or two dedicated groundwater recharge
basins with approximately 64 acres in total area, For Madera, the project as developed in the strategic
recharge plan includes the planning, design, environmental permitting, construction, construction
management, monitoring, assessment, stakeholder outreach, and education associated with the
construction of three turnouts, rehabilitation of one existing turnout, construction of an approximately
40 acre dedicated groundwater recharge basin and allinfrastructure associated with conveyance of
flood flows to approximately 2,500 acres of existing farmfand for recharge through land spreading, also
described as Flood-MAR. Collectively, the Project will be designed to have the capacity of recharging
approximately 19,000 acre-feet (AF) per year when flood flows are available. Funding for completion of
the Project is being funded by a grant from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and a local cost

30% Design for Projects 1 ~ Chowchilla and Madera 1 of 4 December 2021




AN LIS

INEERAING, 1INNC

share. The work set-forth in this proposal covers engineering services associated with 30% design of the
Project.

2 Project Approach

In completion of the 30% design of the Project, the DE Team proposes a comprehensive approach
building off past and ongoing work being performed on behalf of the County by the DE Team. Doing so
will allow the DE Team to expedite completion of the 30% design in a streamlined and cohesive manner,

3 Project Proposal

3.1 Scope of Services

This Scope of Services includes work activities in four (4} tasks as set-forth below.

Task 1. Complete Basis of Design Reports — The DE Team will work closely with applicable County staff
and interested stakeholders to prepare two DRAFT Basis of Desigh (BOD) Reports. The DRAFT BOD
Reports are likely to include the following components:

Introduction

Review of Existing Conditions
Design Criteria

Alterpative Analysis
Preferred Alternative

Project Implementation

YV VvV YY

Upon completion of the DRAFT BOD Reports, the DE Team will facilitate one in-person meeting to
review the DRAFT BOD Report with interested stakeholders in Madera and Chowchilla. Fellowing input
received from interested stakeholders, the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one
remote meeting with applicable County staff to review the DRAFT BOD Reports and solicit any input.
Following the meeting with the County, the DE Team will finalize the DRAFT BOD Reports.

Task 2, Perform Environmentai Fatal Flaw Analysis — The DE Team will review Project diversion
alternatives and necessary conveyance infrastructure alignments in an effort to lessen any
envirohmental impacts and to the extent feasible, the necessary enviranmental permitting associated
with the Project. This task doesn’t include the initiation of Project permitting activities, only a fatal flaw
analysis related to 30% desigh of the Project.

Task 3. Complete Preferred Alignment Survey and Geotechnical Investigation — The DE Team will
facilitate the collection of survey information along the preferred Project alignment(s}, Survey
information collected will include that necessary to facilitate completion of 30% design of the Project.
The scope of the geotechnical investigation will be limited to that necessary and will be dictated by the
professional judgement of the DE Team,

30% Design for Projects 1~ Chowchilla and Madera 2 of 4 December 2021




Task 4, Complete 30% Design Drawings — The DE Team will facilitate the completion af 30% Design
Drawings for the preferred alternative. 30% Design Drawings shall generally include the primary Project
components, but are not final design drawings, and are not of sufficient detail to initiate construction
and/or prepare a detailed engineers estimate of probable cost, Upon completion of the DRAFT 30%
Design Drawings, the DE Team will facilitate one in-person meeting to review the DRAFT 30% Design
Drawings with interested stakeholders in Madera and Chowchilla, Following input received from
interested stakeholders, the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one remote
meeting with applicable County staff to review the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings and solicit any input,
Following the meeting with the County, the DE Team will finalize the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings.

3.2 Deliverables

1. Electronic copy of DRAFT BOD Reports
2. Eectronic copy of DRAFT 30% Design Drawings

3.3 Assumptions

» The DE Team will not be responsible for providing any legal advice, legal guidanee and/or legal
opinjons.

e  County shall provide the DE Team with all landowner contact information as may be required.

o County will work cooperatively with the DE Team and respond timely to the DE Teams
information requests.

s County will facilitate DE Team access to lands as may be required during completion of the work
outfined in tasks 1 -4,

+ County agrees that final implementation and subsequent use of the Project is contingent on
successful environmental permitting, successful water rights permitting, and DWR approval as
applicable in the grant agreement and the DE Team cannot guarantee completion of these items
by a specified date.

¢  County will provide legaf review and/or assistance as may be required during completion of the
work outlined in tasks 1 - 4,

e County will be the lead for stakeholder outreach beyond that set-forth in tasks 1 and 4.

¢ County will be the lead and facilitate landowner and/or GSA agreement preparation, review,
and execution as may be required.

o Project work required and/or requested by the County which is not covered in this proposal
shall be paid for by the County on a time and materials basis at the applicable DE Team rate
then in effect,

e County shall immediately notify the DE Team of any proposed and/or final changes to the grant
agreement that materially impact the DE Teams ability to perform the work set-forth herein.

¢  County shall be responsible for grant agreement administration,

¢  County agrees that professional services set-forth in this proposal do not constitute final design
and shall not be used for construction of the Project,

e The DE Team reserves the right to augment the DE Team with additional team members and
remove team members as may be required to facilitate successful Project completion.

¢ County agrees that the DE Team will perform subsequent design and construction services
associated with the Project through future task amendments.

30% Design for Projects 1 — Chowchilia and Madera 3 of 4 December 2021




3.4 Schedule

DE will initiate this scope of work as soon as practically possible after receiving notice to proceed from
County, DF proposes to complete scope of wotk by March 31, 2022, or as mutually agreed between
County and DE. Deviations from the agreed upon schedule that occur during the work will be made
known to County as soon as practicable, Upon completion of this scope of work and amendment of the
task by Madera County, the DE Team will begin work on subsequent design phases of the Project.

3.5 Cost Proposal

DE Team costs associated with performing tasks 1— 4 as set-forth herein will be billed to the County on
a time and materials basis not to exceed $117,446 as detailed in Appendix A To Attachment 4 of Grant
Proposal for the Eastside Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Project Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 {Appendix A). Actual project costs will not be tracked on a task
basis, nor will individual task budgets constrain charges for work performed up to the total estimated
budget,

30% Design for Projects 1 — Chowchilla and Madera 4 of 4 December 2021




Proposal for Professional Engineering Services

To: Ms. Stephanie Anagnoson
Departiment of Water and Natural Resotirces
Madera County

From: Davids Engineering, Inc.
www.davidsengineering.com

Date: 1/7/22

Subject: Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project

Davids Engineering, Inc. {DE} is pleased to provide this proposal to Madera County (County) for
engineering services associated with the Falrmead Groundwater Resilience Project {Project). As
currently envisioned, the Project will design and develop a plan for implementing a groundwater
resilience project involving greundwater recharge and/or land repurposing efforts within the severely
disadvantaged community of Fairmead, in order to buffer this area from the water security impacts of
climate-induced drought.

1 Project Overview and Objective

The Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) are currently implementing
Groundwater Sustainability Plans {GSPs}) for the Chowchilla, Madera, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins to
achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040, The GSPs include a mix of projects and management
actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater management. A key component of these GSPs is the
development of projects that enable groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, Floed-MAR, and
spreading basins. To ald in groundwater recharge project development, Madera County {County} is
currently engaged in development of a strategic recharge plan and implementation program.

As briefly described ahove, the Project will design and develop a plan for implementing a groundwater
resilience project involving groundwater recharge and/or tand repurposing efforts within the severely
disadvantaged community of Fairmead, in order to buffer this area from the water security impacts of
climate-induced drought. The County intends for the Project to improve local and regional resilience to
drought and climate change, including water quality and subsidence impacts that worsen with drought.
In addition to improving groundwater resources, the Project will attempt to incorporate other climate
resilience benefits, such as reducing local flood risk, enhancing valuable habitat, and improving outdoor
spaces for public health, This unigue and urgently needed Project combines private, public, community,
environmental justice, and environmental interests to co-develop projects for climate resilience,
drinking water protection, ecosystem benefits, and flood mitigation. This Project will demonstrate how
unincorporated and disadvantaged communities can effectively address these threats at the local level,
The project team will work with landowners to identify multiple benefit opportunities to repurpose land,
including but not fimited to restoring habitat and floodplains, creating pollinator habitat, converting to
dryland farming or cover crops, switching from irrigated agriculture to rangeland, and creating parks or
community recreation areas.

Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project 1lof4 January 2022




&

20 ENGINEERING, INC

2 Project Approach

in assisting with completion of the Project, the DE Team proposes a comprehensive approach building
off past and ongoing work being performed on behalf of the County by the DE Team. The DE Team will
work collaboratively with the larger project team to faciiitate completion of the Project. The DE Team
will focus its effort on the four (4) tasks outlined below,

3 Project Proposal

3.1 Scope of Services

This Scope of Services includes work activities in four (4) tasks as set-forth below,

Task 1. Perform Hydrogeologic and Geospatial Analysis — The DE Team will work closely with applicable
County staff to:

¥ Conduct desktop hydrogeologic site assessments to determine recharge and land use change
potential to benefit existing community wells,

» ldentify geographic areas where potential recharge and/or land use changes would benefit
existing community wells using available desktop tools.

¥ Evaluate nutrient management concerns and potential mitigation cptions,

Task 2. Perform Land Ownership ldentification — The DE Team will work closely with applicable County
staff to:

> Identify highest priority land parcels based on the findings of Task 1.

¥ Coordinate with the project team to identify additional characteristics for priority consideration
and develop prioritization protocols.

» Cross-reference parcel identification with landowner engagement and interest.

» Conduct parcel prioritization.

» Work with project team to engage landowners of prioritized parcels to further assess suitability.

Task 3. Perform Financial Analysis — The DE Team will work closely with applicable County staff to:
» Analyze the regional real estate market for Madera County and Fairmead community.

» Conduct informal parcel valuation for all priority parcels.

¥ Determine financial incentives and/or compensation option{s) for the landowners of the priority
parcels.

Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project 2of4 January 2022




FANYA |t =)

INEERING, ING

Task 4. Perform Hydrologic and Environmental Engineering — The DE Team will work closely with
applicable County staff to:

» Develop conceptual design(s) for multi-benefit groundwater resilience project(s), as determined
for prioritized parcels.

» Develop canceptual manitoring plan elements for proposed project(s).

> Estimate final design and implementation costs for Phase 2 grant proposal.

3,2 Deliverables

1. Brief Technical Memorandum (TM) in electronic format summarizing the findings of Task 1.
Brief TM in electronic format summatizing the findings of Task 2 including a map or excel
summary of priority parcels.

3. Brief TM in electronic format summarizing the findings of Task 3.

4. Brlef TM in electronic format inclusive of conceptual layouts for at least one and up to five
groundwater recharge projects, conceptual monitoring plan framework for identified projects,
order of magnitude cost estimates for the identified projects, and an estimate of engineering
fees associated with final design.

3.3 Assumptions

* The DE Team will not be responsible for providing any legal advice, legal guidance and/or legal
opinions. '

e The DE Team will not be responsible for obtaining formal appraisals for the priority parcels.

+ County shall provide the DE Team with all landowner contact information as may be required.

e County will work cooperatively with the DE Team and respond timely to the DE Teams
information requests.

o No field work will be required.

o All meetings wili be held remotely.

«  Aone (1) hour remote meeting between the DE Team and the County will be held as part of
completion of each task. The DE Team and the County will work collaberatively to schedule each
meeting at a time most efficient given the work being performed.

s County will provide one set of track change comments on all draft deliverables and there will be
only one round of revisions,

e County agrees that final implementation and subsequent use of the Project(s) is contingent on
final design, landowner concurrence, successful envirenmental permitting, successful water
rights permitting or water supply acquisition, other permitting or engineering as may be
required, and construction and the DE Team cannot guarantee completien of these items by a
specified date,

¢ County will provide legal review and/or assistance as may be required during completion of the
work outlined in tasks 1 - 4,

s County will be the lead for stakeholder outreach.

¢ Project work required and/or requested by the County which is not covered in this proposal
shall be pald for by the County on a time and materials basis at the applicable DE Team rate
then in effect.

Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project 3of4 January 2022




_ DAVILIS

S  ENDBINGEERING, ING

e County shall immediately notify the DE Team of any proposed and/or final changes to the grant
that materially impact the DE Teams ability to perform the work set-forth herein.

e County shall be responsible for grant administration,

e County agrees that professional services set-forth in this proposal do not constitute final design
and shali not be used for construction of the Project.

e The DE Team reserves the right to augment the DE Team with additional team members and
remove team members as may be required to facilitate successful Project completion.

« County agrees that the DE Team wilf perform subsequent design and construction services
associated with the Project through future task amendments.

e No survey wark will be completed as part of this scope of work.

o  All design work completed as part of this scope will be conceptual in nature.

e Any and all cost estimates prepared as part of this scope are order of magnitude cost estimates
and subject to revision.

3.4 Schedule

DE will initiate this scope of work after receiving notice to proceed from the County, but no eatlier than
May 1, 2022. DE proposes to complete scope of work by October 31, 2023, or as mutually agreed
between County and DE. Deviations from the agreed upon schedule that occur during the work will be
made known to County as soon as practicable. Upon completion of this scope of work and amendment
of the task by Madera County, the DE Team could begin work on subsequent design phases of the
Project(s).

3.5 Cost Proposal

DE Team costs associated with performing tasks 1 —4 as set-forth herein will be billed to the County on
a time and materials basis not to exceed $66,720 as detailed In Appendix E of the California Resilience
Challenge 2021 Grant Proposal Worksheet. Actual project costs will not be tracked on a task basis, nor
will individual task budgets constrain charges for work performed up to the total estimated budget.

Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project 4 of4 January 2022







D. Now, the parties desire to amending the Agreement to add services outlined
in CONSULTANT’s “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Fifth Proposal”)
dated April 29, 2022, for engineering services associated with 60% design for Projects 1
— Chowechilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (Project), attached hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. Section 1 (“Term”) is amended to read:
“This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2020, and will terminate upon
completion of the services as outlined in the Proposals (“Proposals” as
defined in this section shall mean the Proposal, Second Proposal, Third
Proposal, Fourth Proposal, and Fifth Proposal) or June 30, 2023, whichever
is sooner.”
2. Section 2 (“Scope of Services”) is amended to read:
“CONSULTANT shall perform its services over one and a half to three years
(based on budget availability) in accordance with Phase 1 of the Proposal.
CONSULTANT shall perform its services as outlined in CONSULTANT’s
Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Proposals.”
3. Section 3 (“Compensation and Invoicing”) is amended to read:
“CONSULTANT shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed:
» Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) for the Proposal;
+ One Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars
($186,962.00) for the Second Proposal;
¢ One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Dollars

($117,446.00) for the Third Proposal;

Page 2



4.

« Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Dollars ($66,720.00).

« Nine Hundred and Thirty-Nine Thousand, Five Hundred and Seventy-

One Dollars ($939,571.00) for the Fifth Proposal.”
(Referred to collectively herein as Proposals). CONSULTANT’s
compensation under this Agreement, including the labor rates charged for
work under this Agreement, shall not be increased without the written
modification of this Agreement by the COUNTY and CONSULTANT.
Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30) days after
CONSULTANT's regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this
Agreement are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance
acceptable to COUNTY, of the deliverables required under the Proposals.
Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for compensating any of its
sub-consultants under this Agreement.

Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement

shall remain in full force and effect.

/I

1

1

I

/I

1

1

1

/1

/1

Page 3









D. On July 12, 2022, the parties executed Madera Contract No. 11686C-22 (the
“Third Amendment’), amending the Agreement to add services outlined in
CONSULTANT's “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Fifth Proposal”)
dated April 29, 2022, for engineering services associated with 60% design for Projects 1
— Chowchitla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (Project).

E. Now, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to add services outlined in
CONSULTANT's “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Sixth Proposal”)
dated February 21, 2023, for engineering services associated with 30% and 60% Designs
for Chowchilla Subbasin Project 2- Madera County Eastside Bypass Flood Flow Recharge
Program, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. Section 1 (“Term”) is amended to read:
“This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2020, and wiil terminate upon
completion of the services as outlined in the Proposals (“Proposals” as
defined in this section shall mean the Proposal, Second Proposal, Third
Proposal, Fourth Proposal, Fifth Proposal, and Sixth Proposal) or October
13, 2023, whichever is sooner.”

2. Section 2 ("Scope of Services”) is amended to read:
“CONSULTANT shall perform its services over one and a half to three years
(based on budget availability) in accordance with Phase 1 of the Proposal.
CONSULTANT shall perform its services as outlined in CONSULTANT’s
Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, and Sixth Proposals.”

3. Section 3 (*Compensation and Invoicing”) is amended to read:

Page 2



“‘CONSULTANT shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed:
» Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) for the Proposal;
e One Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars
{$186,962.00) for the Second Proposai;
¢ One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Dollars
($117,446.00) for the Third Proposal,
¢ Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Dollars ($66,720.00).
e Nine Hundred and Thirty-Nine Thousand, Five Hundred and Seventy-
One Dollars ($939,571.00) for the Fifth Proposal.
e Four Hundred and Eleven, Four Hundred and Sixty-Five Dollars
($411,465.00) for the Sixth Proposal.”
(Referred to collectively herein as Proposals). CONSULTANT's
compensation under this Agreement, including the labor rates charged for
work under this Agreement, shall not be increased without the written
modification of this Agreement by the COUNTY and CONSULTANT.
Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30) days after
CONSULTANT's regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this
Agreement are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance
acceptable to COUNTY, of the deliverables required under the Proposals.
Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for compensating any of its
sub-consultants under this Agreement.
4. Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect.
I

/f

Page 3






EXHIBIT A




DAVIDS

ENOINEERING, NG

Proposal for Professional Engineering Services

To: Ms. Stephanie Anagnoson
Department of Water and Natural Resources
Madera County

From: Davids Engineering, Inc.,
www.davidsengineering.com

Date: 2/21/23
Subject: 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla Subbasin Project 2 - Madera County Eastside Bypass
Flood Flow Recharge Program

Davids Engineering, Inc. (DE) is pleased to provide this proposal to Madera County (County) for
professional engineering services associated with 30% and 60% designs of Project 2 in the Chowchilla
Subbasin (Project). While DE will complete the majority of work associated with design of the Project,
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) will perform a environmental fatal flaw analysis and permitting
related to necessary diversion and conveyance infrastructure. DE and ESA are collectively referred to as
the DE Team.

1 Project Overview and Objective

The Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies {GSAs) are currently impiementing
Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the Chowchilla, Madera, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins to
achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040. The GSPs include a mix of projects and management
actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater management. A key component of these GSPs is the
development of projects that enable groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, Flood-MAR, and
spreading basins. To aid in groundwater recharge project development, Madera County is currently
engaged in development of a strategic recharge plan and implementation program.

Project 2 in the Chowchilla Subbasin - Madera County Eastside Bypass Flood Fiow Recharge Program
{Chowchilla Project 2) - is funded in part by a Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA}
Implementation Round 1 Grant administered by Triangle T Water District as component 5. Chowchilla
Project 2 includes the planning, design, environmental permitting, construction, construction
management, monitoring, assessment, stakeholder outreach, and education associated with
development of the following: '

¢ Approximately 2 points of diversion on the Chowchilla Bypass equipped with a 20 cfs pump and
fish screen and a 24 inch magnetic flow meter

s Conveyance facitities to deliver water to approximately 700 acres of existing agricultural land for
Flood-MAR including approximately 5,850 linear feet of 27 inch PVC pipeline

s Approximately 6 grower turnouts

¢ Development and installation of approximately one deep dual completion monitoring well



DAVIDS

EnNGINEERING, IMC

2 Project Approach

{n completion of the 30% and 60% designs of the Project, the DE Team proposes a comprehensive
approach building off past and ongoing work being performed on behalf of the County by the DE Team.
Doing so will allow the DE Team to expedite completion of the 30% and 60% designs in a streamlined
and cohesive manner.

3 Project Proposal

This Scope of Services includes work activities for both 30% and 60% designs as set-forth below.

3.1 Scope of Services - 30% Design

Task 1. Complete Basis of Design Report — The DE Team will work closely with applicable County staff
and interested stakeholders to prepare a DRAFT Basis of Design {(BOD} Report. The DRAFT BOD Report is
likely to include the foliowing components:

Introduction

Review of Existing Conditions
Design Criteria
Environmental considerations
Alternative Analysis
Preferred Alternative

Project Implementation

YV VvV VY YY

Upon comptetion of the DRAFT BOD Report, the DE Team will facilitate one in-person meeting to review
the DRAFT BOD Report with interested stakeholders. Following input received from interested
stakeholders, the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one remote meeting with
applicable County staff to review the DRAFT BOD Report and solicit input. Following the meeting with
the County, the DE Team wili finalize the DRAFT BOD Report.

Task 2. Perform Environmental Fatal Flaw Analysis — The DE Team will review Project diversion
alternatives and necessary conveyance infrastructure alignments in an effort to lessen environmental
impacts and to the extent feasible, the necessary environmental permitting associated with the Project.
This task doesn’t include the initiation of Project permitting activities, only a fatal flaw analysis related to
30% design of the Project.

Task 3. Complete Preferred Alignment Survey and Geotechnical Investigation — The DE Team will
facilitate the collection of survey information along the preferred Project alignment(s}. Survey
information collected will include that necessary to facilitate completion of Project designs. At the 30%
Design stage the scope of the geotechnical investigation will be limited to a desktop exercise using
information available from previous studies conducted during phase 1 projects as well as online.
Geotechnical efforts expended during this phase of design will be dictated by the professional
judgement of the DE Team.

Chowchilla SB Project 2-30% & 60% Designs 20f6 February 2023



DAVIDS

ENGINEERING, INC

Task 4. Complete 30% Design Drawings — The DE Team will facilitate the completion of 30% Design
Drawings for the preferred alternative resulting from Task 1. 30% Design Drawings shail generaily
include the primary Project components, but are not final design drawings, and are not of sufficient
detai to initiate construction and/or prepare a detailed engineer’s estimate of probable cost. Upon
completion of the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings, the DE Team wiil facilitate one in-person meeting to
review the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings with interested stakeholders. Following input received from
interested stakeholders, the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one remote
meeting with County staff to review the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings and solicit input. Following the
meeting with the County, the DE Team will finalize the DRAFT 30% Design Drawings.

3.2 Scope of Services - 60% Design

Task 5. Update Basis of Design Reports — The DE Team will work closely with applicable County staff and
interested stakeholders to update the DRAFT Basis of Design {BOD) Report prepared as part of the 30%
design.

Upon completion of the BOD Report, the DE Team will facilitate one, 1-hour meeting to review with
interested stakeholders in Chowchilla Subbasin. Following input received from interested stakeholders,
the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one, 1-hour remote meeting with
applicable County staff to review the updated BOD Report and solicit input. Following the meeting with
County staff, the DE Team will finalize the BOD Report. The DE Team doesn’t foresee any changes to the
BOD Report following completion of the 60% design. The County shall be responsible for conveying
copies of the BOD Report to the DWR Grant Manager as may be required.

Task 6. Perform Environmental Compliance and Permitting — Using the design information available,
the DE Team will initiate environmental compliance and permitting for the Project. Environmental
compliance and permitting may include, but is not limited to field surveys, CEQA compliance, and
permitting activities with various entities as may be required (USACE, NHPA, USFWS, NMFS, SWRCB,
CVFPB, CDWF, and various local agencies). The DE Team will share electronic copies of draft
environmental compliance and permitting documentation with applicable County staff to solicit input.
Up to 10, 1-hour remote meetings will be held with the DE Team and applicable County staff to discuss
environmental compliance and permitting activities as may be required. Remote meetings will include,
at most, 4 DE Team members {2 from DE and 2 from ESA). The County shall be responsibie for conveying
copies of ali required permits, initial study, notice of intent, notice of completion, notice of
determination and any additional required CEQA documentation to the DWR Grant Manager. Any and
all filing and permit application fees will be the responsibility of the County. The DE Team can’t
guarantee timely action by the permitting agencies and therefore any delay on behalf of the permitting
agencies will impact the schedule set-forth in Section 3.5 of this proposal.

Task 7. Prepare DRAFT Project Specifications and Bid Documents — The DE Team will prepare a
complete working draft of the technical specifications and bid documents for the Project. To the extent
available, County staff shall supply DE with standard specifications and bid documents as may be
customarily used by the County. it is anticipated that specifications and bid documents will be
substantially the same as that developed for Chowchilla Subbasin Project 1. Bid Documents provided by

Chowchilia 5B Project 2-30% & 60% Designs 3of6 February 2023




DAVIDS

EMNSINEERING, INDC

the DE Team will include Scope of Work, General Specifications, Technical Specifications, Engineers
Estimate, Bid Quantities Sheet, and Design Drawings. The County will be responsible for providing
Construction Contract Agreement{s) and Genera! Conditions. Following completion of the draft
specifications and bid documents, the DE Team will facilitate one, 2-hour meeting with applicable
County staff to review the draft specifications and bid documents. Following the meeting with the
County, the DE Team will revise the draft specifications and bid documents as may be required. County
staff will be responsible for sharing the draft specifications and bid documents with the DWR Grant
Manager and subsequently sharing any and all comments from the DWR Grant Manager with the DE
Team as applicable.

Task 8. Complete 60% Design Drawings — The DE Team will facilitate the completion of 60% Design
Drawings for the Project. 60% Design Drawings will include all primary Project components and relevant
details. The 60% design drawings aren’t final design drawings and shall not be used to initiate
construction and/or prepare a final engineer’'s estimate of probable cost. Upon completion of the 60%
Design Drawings, the DE Team will facilitate one, 2-hour in-person meeting to review the 60% Design
Drawings with interested stakeholders in Chowchilla Subbasin. Following input received from interested
stakeholders, the DE Team will make any necessary revisions and facilitate one, 2-hour remote meeting
with applicable County staff to review the 60% Design Drawings and solicit input. Folowing the meeting
with the County, the DE Team will finalize the 60% Design Drawings. County staff will be respaonsible for
sharing the 60% Design Drawings with the DWR Grant Manager and subsequently sharing any and all
comments from the DWR Grant Manager with the DE Team as applicable.

Task 9. Prepare Planning Level Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Cost (Engineer’s Estimate) — Using the
60% Design Drawings (Task 8), the DE Team will prepare an Engineer’s Estimate. The Engineer’s Estimate
will reflect the scope of the Project as set-forth in the 60% Design Drawings, the requirements and
standards set-forth in the draft specifications, and current construction costs. At this point, the
Engineer’s Estimate will not include costs associated with Environmental Permitting and Compliance.
Costs estimated at this stage are suitable for planning and value engineering but shall not be used for
making binding budget decisions. Final estimated Project costs are predicated on the final design
drawings, specifications, and construction prices at the time of bid. Following completion of the
Engineer’s Estimate, the DE Team will facilitate one, 2-hour remote meeting with applicable County staff
to review the Engineer’s Estimate and solicit any input. Any Project scope changes stemming from the
review shail be conveyed to the DE Team in writing.

3.3 Deliverables

30% Design Deliverables
1. Electronic copy of DRAFT BOD Report
2. Electronic copy of DRAFT 30% Design Drawings
60% Design Deliverables
Electronic copy of Updated BOD Reports
Electronic copy of DRAFT 60% Design Drawings
Electronic copy of DRAFT Engineer’s Estimate
Electronic copy of DRAFT Project Specifications and Bid Documents
Electronic copy of CEQA documentation

AN o

Chowchilla SB Project 2-30% & 60% Designs 4 0fb February 2023




DAVIDS

¢ ENDINEERING, 1INGC

3.4 Assumptions

e The DE Team will not be responsible for providing any legal advice, legal guidance and/or legal
opinions.

s County shall provide the DE Team with all landowner contact information as may be required.

s County will work cooperatively with the DE Team and respond timely to the DE Teams
information requests.

o County will facilitate DE Team access to lands as may be required during completion of the work
outlined in tasks 1- 9.

«  County agrees that final implementation and subsequent use of the Project is contingent on
successful environmental permitting, successful water rights permitting, and DWR approval as
applicable in the grant agreement and the DE Team cannot guarantee completion of these items
by a specified date.

¢ County will provide legal review and/or assistance as may be required during completion of the
work outlined in tasks 1 -9,

o  County will be the lead for stakeholder outreach beyond that set-forth above.,

e County will be the lead and facilitate landowner and/or GSA agreement preparation, review,
and execution as may be required.

e  Project work required and/or requested by the County which is not covered in this proposal
shall be paid for by the County on a time and materials basis at the applicable DE Team rate
then in effect.

e County shalt immediately notify the DE Team of any proposed and/or final changes to the grant
agreement that materially impact the DE Teams ability to perform the work set-forth herein.

¢« County shall be responsible for grant agreement administration.

¢ County agrees that professional services set-forth in this proposal do not constitute final design
and shall not be used for construction of the Project.

e The DE Team reserves the right to augment the DE Team with additional team members and
remove team members as may be required to facilitate successful Project completion.

o County agrees that the DE Team will perform subseguent design and construction services
associated with the Project through future task amendments.

3.5 Schedule

DE will initiate this scope of work as soon as practically possible after receiving notice to proceed from
County. DE proposes to complete scope of work, excluding completion of task 6 Environmental
Compliance and Permitting, by October 13, 2023, or as mutually agreed between County and DE,
Deviations from the agreed upon schedule that occur during the work will be made known to County as
soon as practicable. Upon completion of this scope of work and amendment of the task by Madera
County, the DE Team will begin work on subsequent design phases of the Project.

3.6 Cost Proposal

DE Team costs associated with performing tasks 1--9 as set-forth herein will be billed to the County on
a time and materials basis not to exceed $411,465. Actual project costs will not be tracked on a task

Chowchilla SB Project 2-30% & 60% Designs 5of6 February 2023




IAVIIDS

ERNCOINEERING, INGC

basis, nor will individual task budgets constrain charges for work performed up to the total estimated
budget.

Chowechilla SB Project 2-30% & 60% Designs 6ofb February 2023







D. On July 12, 2022, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686C-22 (the “Third Amendment”), amending the Agreement to add services outlined
in CONSULTANT’s “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Fifth Proposal”)
dated April 29, 2022, for engineering services associated with 60% design for Projects 1
— Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (Project).

E. On April 11, 2023, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686D-23 (the “Fourth Amendment’) to add services outlined in CONSULTANT's
“Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Sixth Proposal”) dated February
21, 2023, for engineering services associated with 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla
Subbasin Project 2- Madera County Eastside Bypass Flood Flow Recharge Program.

F. Now, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the
Agreement to June 30, 2027.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. Section 1 (“Term”) is amended to read:
“This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2020, and will terminate upon
completion of the services as outlined in the Proposals (“Proposals” as
defined in this section shall mean the Proposal, Second Proposal, Third
Proposal, Fourth Proposal, Fifth Proposal, and Sixth Proposal) or June 30,
2027, whichever is sooner.”
2. Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect.
i

i

Page 2









D. On July 12, 2022, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686C-22 (the “Third Amendment”), amending the Agreement to add services outlined
in CONSULTANT's “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Fifth Proposal”)
dated April 29, 2022, for engineering services associated with 60% design for Projects 1
— Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (Project).

E. On April 11, 2023, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686D-23 (the “Fourth Amendment”) to add services outlined in CONSULTANT's
“Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Sixth Proposal”) dated February
21, 2023, for engineering services associated with 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla
Subbasin Project 2- Madera County Eastside Bypass Flood Flow Recharge Program.

F. On September 12, 2023, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686E-23 (“Fifth Amendment”) to extend the term of the Agreement to June 30, 2027.

G. Now, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to revise and expand the
scope of services provided by CONSULTANT.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. Section 2 (“Scope of Services") is amended to add and revise additional

services to be provided by CONSULTANT as follows:
“CONSULTANT shall perform (a) those additional services described in its
Proposal dated May 28, 2024, attached herewith as Exhibit A (30% and 60%
Designs for Madera Subbasin Project 2 - Chowchilla Bypass Flood Water
Recharge) and (b) those additional services described in its Proposal dated

May 28, 2024, attached herewith as Exhibit B (100% Design and

Page 2



Environmental Compliance Permitting for Project 1 - Chowchilla Bypass

Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1).”

Section 3 ("Compensation and Invoicing”) is amended to read as follows:

*CONSULTANT shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed:

Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) for the Proposal,
One Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars
($186,962.00) for the Second Proposal.

One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Dollars
($117,446.00) for the Third Proposal.

Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Dollars ($66,720.00) for
the Fourth Proposal.

Nine Hundred Thirty-Nine Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-One
Dollars ($939,571.00) for the Fifth Proposal.

Four Hundred Eleven Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars
($411,465.00) for the Sixth Proposal.

Four Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Dollars
($447,580.00) for the Seventh Proposal, attached herewith as Exhibit
A.

Sixty Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-One Dollars ($60,331.00) for

the Eighth Proposal, attached herewith as Exhibit B.

(Referred to collectively herein as Proposals). CONSULTANT's

compensation under this Agreement, including the labor rates charged for

work under this Agreement, shall not be increased without the written

modification of this Agreement by the COUNTY and CONSULTANT.

Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30) days after

Page 3




CONSULTANT’s regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this
Agreement are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance
acceptable to COUNTY, of the deliverables required under the Proposals.
Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for compensating any of its
sub-consultants under this Agreement.”
3. Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement

shall remain in full force and effect.

/]

I

i

I

i

I

1

I

1

1

i

i

i

i

i

"

"

i

Page 4






EXHIBIT “A”


















EXHIBIT “B”















MADERA COUNTY CONTRACT NO.
(Contract Amendment; Davids Engineering, Inc.
Contract for Groundwater Recharge Study)

THIS SEVENTH AMENDMENT is made and entered into this day of

, 2025, by and between the COUNTY OF MADERA, a political

subdivision of the State of California and a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“GSA”)
within the Madera, Chowchilla, and Delta-Mendota Groundwater Subbasins (“COUNTY?),
and DAVIDS ENGINEERING, INC. (“CONSULTANT").

RECITALS

A. The parties previously executed Madera County Contract No. 11686-20 (the
“Agreement’) on July 21, 2020, for the purpose of having CONSULTANT performed those
services described in CONSULTANT’s May 15, 2020, Proposal (“First Proposal”) entitled
“Recharge Study Consulting Services RFP 2020-06.” The Agreement terminates upon
completion of the services outlined in the First Proposal, or June 30, 2023, whichever is
sooner.

B. On August 17, 2021, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686A-21 (the “First Amendment”), amending the Agreement to add services outlined in
CONSULTANT’s Proposal (“Second Proposal’), dated July 29, 2021, for the development
of a Temporary Emergency Recharge Plan (“Plan”).

C. On February 1, 2022, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686B-21 (the “Second Amendment”), amending the Agreement to add services outlined
in CONSULTANT’s Proposal for Professional Engineering Services — 30% Design for
Projects 1 — Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction
Phase 1 and East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1 (“Third Proposal’), dated
December 10, 2021 and CONSULTANT’s Proposal for Professional Engineering Services

— Fairmead Groundwater Resilience Project (“Fourth Proposal’), dated January 7, 2022.



D. On July 12, 2022, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686C-22 (the “Third Amendment”), amending the Agreement to add services outlined
in CONSULTANT's “Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Fifth Proposal”)
dated April 29, 2022, for engineering services associated with 60% design for Projects 1
— Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1 and
East Madera Subbasin Recharge Phase 1.

E. On April 11, 2023, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686D-23 (the “Fourth Amendment”) to add services outlined in CONSULTANT’s
“Proposal for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Sixth Proposal’) dated February
21, 2023, for engineering services associated with 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla
Subbasin Project 2- Madera County Eastside Bypass Flood Flow Recharge Program.

F. On September 12, 2023, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686E-23 (the “Fifth Amendment”) to extend the term of the Agreement to June 30, 2027.

G. On August 6, 2024, the parties executed Madera County Contract No.
11686F-24 (the “Sixth Amendment”) to add services outlined in CONSULTANT’s “Proposal
for Professional Engineering Services” (the “Seventh Proposal’) dated May 28, 2024, for
engineering services associated with 30% and 60% Designs for Madera Subbasin Project
2 - Chowchilla Bypass Flood Water Recharge and “Proposal for Professional Engineering
Services” (the “Eighth Proposal’) dated May 28, 2024, for engineering services associated
with 100% Design and Environmental Compliance Permitting for Project 1 - Chowchilla
Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Phase 1.

H. Now, the parties desire to amend the Agreement to revise and expand the
scope of services provided by CONSULTANT.

I

I

Page 2



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

2.

AMENDMENTS

Section 1 (“Term”) is amended to read:

“This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2020, and will terminate upon
completion of the services as outlined in the Proposals (“‘Proposals” as
defined in this section shall mean the Proposal incorporated into the original
Agreement and all subsequent Proposals added through amendment of this
Agreement) or June 30, 2027, whichever is sooner.’;

Section 2 (“Scope of Services”) is amended to add and revise additional

services to be provided by CONSULTANT as follows:

I

“CONSULTANT shall perform (a) those additional services described in its
Proposal dated July 1, 2025 (the “Ninth Proposal’), attached herewith as
Exhibit A (Proposal for 100% Design and Environmental Permitting for
Madera Subbasin Recharge Project 1), (b) those additional services
described in its Proposal dated July 1, 2025 (the “Tenth Proposal’), attached
herewith as Exhibit B (Proposal for Bidding and Construction Management
— Chowechilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction
Project 1), (c) those additional services described in its Proposal dated May
2, 2025 (the “Eleventh Proposal’), attached herewith as Exhibit C (Proposal
for 100% Design and Environmental Compliance Permitting for Chowchilla
Subbasin Recharge Project 2), and (d) those additional services described
in its Proposal dated June 3, 2025 (the “Twelfth Proposal”), attached
herewith as Exhibit D (Proposal for 30% and 60% Designs for Chowchilla

Recharge Project 2 — Talley Diversion System ).”

Page 3



3.

Section 3 (“Compensation and Invoicing”) is amended to read as follows:

“CONSULTANT shall be compensated in an amount not to exceed:

Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) for the First
Proposal.

One Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars
($186,962.00) for the Second Proposal.

One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Dollars
($117,446.00) for the Third Proposal.

Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Dollars ($66,720.00) for
the Fourth Proposal.

Nine Hundred Thirty-Nine Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-One
Dollars ($939,571.00) for the Fifth Proposal.

Four Hundred Eleven Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars
($411,465.00) for the Sixth Proposal.

Four Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Dollars
($447,580.00) for the Seventh Proposal.

Sixty Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-One Dollars ($60,331.00) for
the Eighth Proposal.

Eighty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and Fifty
Cents ($85,325.50) for the Ninth Proposal, attached herewith as
Exhibit A.

Three Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Eight
Dollars ($383,528.00) for the Tenth Proposal, attached herewith as

Exhibit B.

Page 4



"

I

I

1

1

1

e One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000.00) for the
Eleventh Proposal, attached herewith as Exhibit C.

e Three Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand Four Hundred Seventeen
Dollars ($326,417.00) for the Twelfth Proposal, attached herewith as
Exhibit D.

(Referred to collectively herein as Proposals). CONSULTANT’s total
combined compensation for the Nineth, Tenth, Eleventh, and Twelfth
Proposals shall not exceed Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Two
Hundred Seventy Dollars and Fifty Cents ($975,270.50). CONSULTANT's
compensation under this Agreement, including the labor rates charged for
work under this Agreement, shall not be increased without the written
modification of this Agreement by the COUNTY and CONSULTANT.

Payments under this Agreement shall be made within thirty (30) days after

~ CONSULTANT's regular monthly invoicing. Payment obligations under this

Agreement are contingent upon the receipt, in a form and substance
acceptable to COUNTY, of the deliverables required under the Proposals.
Also, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for compensating any of its

sub-consultants under this Agreement.”

Page 5



4. Section 4 (“Notices”) is amended to read as follows:

“All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective

upon personal service or deposit in the mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

COUNTY CONSULTANT

County of Madera John Davids

Water and Natural Resources Dept. Davids Engineering, Inc.

200 West 4" Street 1772 Picasso Avenue, Suite A
Madera, CA 93637 Davis, CA 95618

With Copy to

Clerk of the Board
Board of Supervisors
200 West 4th Street
Madera, CA 93637”

5. Except as otherwise amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect.
!

I
Il
Il
Il
Il
I
I
I
I
Il

Page 6






EXHIBIT A















EXHIBIT B



Proposal for Professional Engineering Services

To: Ms. Stephanie Anagnoson
Department of Water and Natural Resources
Madera County

From: Davids Engineering, Inc.
www.davidsengineering.com

Date: 7/1/2025
Subject: Bidding & Construction Management - Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood
Risk Reduction Project 1

Davids Engineering, Inc. (DE) is pleased to provide this proposal to Madera County GSA (County) for
professional engineering services associated with providing bidding support and construction
management services for Chowchilla Bypass Recharge for Subsidence and Flood Risk Reduction Project 1
(Project). While DE will complete the majority of work associated with construction management of the
Project, a team of subconsultants will provide assistance within their specific areas of expertise as
indicated below. DE, Environmental Science Associates (ESA), BSK, Provost and Pritchard, and Ardurra,
Inc. are collectively referred to as the DE Team.

e ESA will perform environmental surveys as required by Project permits

e BSK will perform soils and materials testing

e Ardurra, Inc. will provide construction staking and as-built surveys

e Provost and Pritchard will provide on-site inspection

1 Project Overview and Objective

The Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) are currently implementing
Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the Chowchilla, Madera, and Delta-Mendota Subbasins to
achieve groundwater sustainability by 2040. The GSPs include a mix of projects and management
actions that will lead to sustainable groundwater management. A key component of these GSPs is the
development of projects that enable groundwater recharge through in-lieu practices, Flood-MAR, and
spreading basins. To aid in groundwater recharge project development, Madera County is currently
engaged in development of a strategic recharge plan and implementation program.

The Project as identified in the strategic recharge plan includes the planning, design, environmental
permitting, construction, construction management, monitoring, assessment, stakeholder outreach, and
education associated with the construction of three new turnouts with appropriate conveyance to divert
flood flows to approximately 1,700 acres of existing farmland for flood-managed aquifer recharge
(Flood-MAR) and two dedicated groundwater recharge basins with approximately 64 acres in total area.

Construction Management Chowchilla Project 1 1of5 July 1, 2025


http://www.davidsengineering.com/

2 Project Approach

In completion of providing construction management services for the Project, the DE Team proposes a
comprehensive approach building off past and ongoing work being performed on behalf of the County
by the DE Team.

3 Project Proposal

3.1 Scope of Services

The scope of professional services includes work activities in four (4) tasks as set-forth below.

Task 1. Advertise Project for Bid and Support Award

The DE Team, in collaboration with Madera County GSA staff, will prepare bidding documents including
the invitation to bid, instructions to bidders, bid forms, and descriptions of bid items. Upon completion
of bid documents, the DE Team will assist Madera County GSA staff with coordinating an on-site pre-bid
meeting and publicly advertising the Project in accordance with the public bidding practices adopted by
Madera County. Upon acceptance of public bids, the DE Team will provide support in reviewing received
bids and making a recommendation of award.

Deliverables:
e Bidding Documents
e Recommendation of Award

Task 2. Complete Pre-Construction Activities

The DE Team will advance the construction/implementation phase from bid award to the beginning of
construction by coordinating with landowners, sending pre-construction notification to permitting
agencies, and coordinating the pre-construction meeting. The DE team will also coordinate pre-
construction surveys & reporting for permit compliance.

Deliverables:
e Pre-construction notifications to permitting agencies and landowners
e Pre-construction surveys and reports for permit compliance and documentation of pre-
construction conditions
e Pre-construction meeting minutes

Task 3. Facilitate Construction Management
In performing construction management duties, the DE Team will provide the following:

e Engineering and management services during construction to ensure that the Project is built per
the approved plans and specifications, meets the designer’s intent, and methods, products,
materials, and equipment used are pre-approved and documented.

e Day-to-day management of construction activities with the objective of 1) ensuring that
contractual and design-related requirements are being met by the contractor, 2) construction-
related costs and schedule are monitored and controlled, 3) construction activities are tracked,
documented, and relayed to the Madera County GSA staff and other project partners, and 4) the

Construction Management Chowchilla Project 1 20f5 July 1, 2025



transitional stages (i.e., close-out and hand-over) of the Project are completed efficiently and
effectively.

Preparation of progress payments.

Onsite oversite and inspection of construction activities as dictated by construction progress and
focusing on critical stages of work, underground work prior to covering, and items requiring
special inspection.

Facilitate biological and permit compliance monitoring.

Participate in one pre-, during, and post-construction site visit with the DWR Grant Manager
and/or other representative of DWR as required.

Construction staking that provides general layout allowing contractor to set line and grade for all
Project features and components.

Materials and soils testing to ensure work performed meets the project plans and specifications.

Deliverables:

Construction documentation — daily reports, submittals, schedules, requests for information,
progress payments, etc.

Construction staking records

Materials and soils testing records

Photo documentation

Site visit write ups

Environmental compliance reports

Task 4. Perform Construction Contract Close-Out

The DE Team will prepare a summary and reconciliation of all payments, certification of completion by
the design engineer and a notice of final completion to close-out the construction contract. The Project
Manager will review and confirm accuracy of the record/as-built drawings to indicate all changes made
during the construction process. The Project Manager will complete the final close-out walk-through and
inspection (with Madera County GSA staff), including any permit inspections showing all commitments
and compliance.

Deliverables:

Record/As-built drawings
Certification of completion
Grant Completion Report
Notice of completion

3.2 Assumptions

The DE Team will not be responsible for providing any legal advice, legal guidance and/or legal
opinions.
County shall provide the DE Team with all landowner contact information as may be required.

County will work cooperatively with the DE Team and respond timely to the DE Team’s
information requests.

Construction Management Chowchilla Project 1 30f5 July 1, 2025



e County will facilitate DE Team access to lands as may be required during completion of the work
outlined in tasks 1 - 4.

e County agrees that final implementation and subsequent use of the Project is contingent on
successful environmental permitting, successful water rights permitting, and DWR approval as
applicable in the grant agreement and the DE Team cannot guarantee completion of these items
by a specified date.

e County will provide legal review and/or assistance as may be required during completion of the
work outlined in tasks 1 - 4.

e County will be the lead for stakeholder outreach beyond that set-forth in tasks 1 - 4.

e County will be the lead and facilitate landowner and/or GSA agreement preparation, review,
and execution as may be required.

e Any and all fees associated with environmental permitting and CEQA will be the responsibility of
CLIENT.

e Any and all fees associated with Project advertising will be the responsibility of CLIENT.

e Project work required and/or requested by the County which is not covered in this proposal
shall be paid for by the County on a time and materials basis at the applicable DE Team rate
then in effect.

e County shall immediately notify the DE Team of any proposed and/or final changes to the grant
agreement that materially impact the DE Teams ability to perform the work set-forth herein.

e County shall be responsible for grant agreement administration.

e The DE Team reserves the right to augment the DE Team with additional team members and
remove team members as may be required to facilitate successful Project completion.

e One set of construction stakes will be provided for each project feature (pump sump, control
structure, pipelines, etc.). Any re-staking or staking outside of this scope of shall be paid for by
the County on a time and materials basis at the applicable DE Team rate then in effect.

3.3 Schedule

DE will initiate this scope of work as soon as practically possible after receiving notice to proceed from
County. DE proposes to complete scope of work by January 28, 2026 (1 month prior to grant end date),
or as mutually agreed between County and DE. Deviations from the agreed upon schedule that occur
during the work will be made known to County as soon as practicable.

3.4 Cost Proposal

DE Team costs associated with performing tasks 1 — 4 as set-forth herein will be billed to the County on
a time and materials basis not to exceed $383,528. Actual project costs will not be tracked on a task
basis, nor will individual task budgets constrain charges for work performed up to the total estimated
budget. Table 1 below provides a Fee Summary by Task of the costs associated with the work
contemplated herein.

Construction Management Chowchilla Project 1 40f5 July 1, 2025



TABLE 1. FEE SUMMARY

Task Name

DE Labor
Cost

Sub -

Contractor
Cost

Direct
Cost

Estimated
Total Cost

1 ﬁsv\;ergise Project for Bid and Support $41,668 $10,000 $98 $51,766

2 Complete Preconstruction Activities $10,960 $0 $336 $11,296

3 Facilitate Construction Management $45,178 $259,620 | $3,136 $307,934

4 g(lej;form Construction Contract Close- $12,196 $0 $336 $12,532
Totals $110,002 $269,620 $3,906 $383,528
Construction Management Chowchilla Project 1 50of5 July 1, 2025




EXHIBIT C















EXHIBIT D





















	Item 4 - Meas Method Vendors Committee Report Update.pdf
	FISCAL IMPACT:

	Item 6 - DE Contract Amendment for Recharge Projects.pdf
	DE 7th Recharge Contract Amendment.pdf
	DE 7th Recharge Contract Amendment.pdf
	Exhibit BCopy.pdf
	1 Project Overview and Objective
	2 Project Approach
	3 Project Proposal
	3.1 Scope of Services
	3.2 Assumptions
	3.3 Schedule
	3.4 Cost Proposal







